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Mr Tim Daly, Workplace Services, Victoria Park
Mr Ahmad Abbas, Dynamo Fitness, Malaga
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Mr Tom Walker, Seacrets Surf, City Beach
Ms Jane Page, VTBS, Ballajura
Mr Brad and Ms Rhonda Sims, Simron Transport, Narrogin
and:
Hon. Joe Francis MLA, Minister for Small Business
Hon. Ken Baston, Minister for Agriculture and Food
Mr Rob Sands, Rural Business Development Corporation
Mr Chris Wheatcroft, Rural Financial Counselling Service WA
Mr Rod and Ms Cheryl Bishop, Mandurah Cruises and Gift Shop –
2014 Regional Business of the Year, WA Regional Small Business Awards
Mr Ray Philp, 2014 Hall of Fame inductee
Ms Tracey Loubser, Confident Cashflows, Baldivis
Ms Daisy Bedwell, Pantoufle, Subiaco
Mr Ron Mosby, President, Regional Chambers of Commerce and Industry
Derek Nannup, Desi Farrell, Jay McLean and Dakota Baker.
Members of a Chinese delegation visiting the SBDC
Members of a business delegation visiting City of Perth Lord Mayor, Lisa Scaffidi
Finalists and winners of the 2014 WA Regional Small Business Awards
Members of the SBDC Facebook group
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Statement of compliance for the year ended 30 June 2015
HON. JOE FRANCIS MLA
MINISTER FOR SMALL BUSINESS
In accordance with section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit for your information
and presentation to Parliament, the annual report of the Small Business Development Corporation for the
financial year ended 30 June 2015.
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.

Caterina (Kitty) Prodonovich
Chair

The winner of the 2014 Western Australian
Regional Small Business Awards
was Mandurah Cruises and Gift Shop.
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Overview of agency
About the SBDC
The Small Business Development Corporation (SBDC) is an independent statutory authority, established in
1984 under the Small Business Development Corporation Act 1983.
What we do
The primary role of the SBDC is to encourage, promote, facilitate and assist the establishment, growth and
development of small business in Western Australia.
This is achieved by providing advice and guidance, as well as education and skill development programs, to
small business owners. The SBDC also offers an alternative dispute resolution (ADR) service in relation to small
business disputes.
The SBDC works directly with small business operators and liaises with industry and business associations to
exchange information and provide support and assistance to their members.
The SBDC also provides advice and support to the Minister for Small Business on matters impacting the sector,
including the effect of government policy and legislation on small business.
Through these avenues, the SBDC helps to raise public awareness of the importance of small business to the
economy and community.
In addition, the SBDC investigates any matters impacting small businesses and advises small business on ways
to obtain assistance.
The SBDC maintains an information centre with a comprehensive range of business resources and delivers
workshops for existing and potential small business operators.

The Hon. Joe Francis MLA, Minister for Small Business

Responsible Minister
As at 30 June 2015, the Hon. Joe Francis MLA,
Minister for Small Business, has responsibility for the
Small Business Development Corporation.
Enabling legislation
The Small Business Development Corporation Act 1983
(SBDC Act) makes provision for the establishment of
the Small Business Development Corporation and
Small Business Commissioner.
Our vision
A strong and enterprising small business sector in
Western Australia.
Our mission
To deliver and facilitate relevant, practical support to
small businesses and to foster the development of
policy conducive to the growth of a thriving sector.
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Overview of agency
Our values
Enterprise – valuing a culture of enterprise and
innovation within the community.
Focus – acting with courage, discipline and clarity of
purpose.
Independence – acting in the best interests of the
small business sector.
Fairness – valuing an environment where small
business can thrive.
Collaboration – actively engaging with others to
achieve our mutual objectives.
Our strategic objectives
In accordance with its 2013-2017 Strategic Plan, the
SBDC strives to:
• offer continually improving practical and relevant
services across Western Australia;
• model contemporary service delivery;
• build strong engagement with, and commitment
from, all key stakeholder groups;
• advocate for a fair, conducive and productive
environment for small business;
• develop its organisational capacity and capability;
and
• ensure the best return on Government funds
invested in the development of the sector.

6

What is small business?
The SBDC Act defines a ‘small business’ as a business
undertaking which is wholly owned and operated
by an individual person, persons in partnership, or
by a proprietary company within the meaning of the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and which:
(i) has a relatively small share of the market in which
it competes;
(ii) is managed personally by the owner or owners or
directors, as the case requires; and
(iii) is not a subsidiary of, or does not form part of, a
larger business or enterprise.
The SBDC uses the standard Australian Bureau of
Statistics (ABS) definition of small business, which
is any non-employing business or a business
employing fewer than 20 staff.
Small business statistics
There are 211,658 actively trading small businesses in
Western Australia (as at June 2014), which represents
96.7 per cent of all businesses in the State. The
proportion of Western Australian businesses in each
size category is illustrated in the adjacent chart:

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

0.2% Large
3.1% Medium
9.9% Small (5-19 staff)
24.8% Micro (1-4 staff)
62.0% Non employing

Note: Medium-sized businesses are defined as those with 20-199 staff members
and large businesses are defined as those with 200 or more staff members.

As at June 2014, the industries with the largest
number of small businesses in Western Australia
(in descending order) are:
• Construction (39,239 or 18.5%);
• Professional, scientific and technical services
(25,074 or 11.8%);
• Rental, hiring and real estate services (22,927 or
10.8%);
• Financial and insurance services (18,469 or 8.7%);
and
• Agriculture, forestry and fishing (17,470 or 8.3%).
(ABS Cat. No. 8165.0 – Counts of Australian Businesses, including Entries and Exits,
June 2010 to June 2014)
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Overview of agency

SBDC: 2014-15 at a glance

91%

of clients said information
and advice provided was
useful to their business

Almost

140

workshops and
information
sessions delivered
Almost

Almost

60,000
clients assisted

2,569

clients assisted with
commercial tenancy
issues
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2,300
dispute-related
enquiries handled
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Executive summary
Chair’s report
As a former small business
owner I appreciate the
opportunity to be a
member of the SBDC Board
and to be able to continue
my support of the small
business sector in this
way. It was therefore with
particular delight that I
accepted my appointment
to the role of Chair in
October 2014. I would like
to acknowledge the work and dedication that my
predecessor, Mr Ray Mountney, brought to the role
and the huge impact he had on the agency – I am
very aware of the big shoes I have to fill.
Having been involved with the SBDC Board for the
past seven years, I continue to be impressed with
the agency’s ability to regularly adapt to meet the
evolving needs of WA’s small business owners.
This annual report outlines the considerable success
the agency has achieved during 2014-15; a period of
change and consolidation for the SBDC as it made
significant revisions to the way in which it supports
small business, while also navigating its way through
a rapidly changing economic climate.
The SBDC’s vision for a strong and enterprising small
business sector in Western Australia was reinforced
by an overhaul of the way in which it delivers advice
and support beyond its base in the Perth CBD.

8

As the Small Business Centre program comes to a
close, a new ‘Business Local’ service is set to launch
on 1 July 2015, providing quality advice to small
business across twelve regions in WA. The Board
and I look forward to the benefits this new outreach
service will provide over the coming years.
Throughout 2014-15 the SBDC has made significant
contributions to policy development at State and
Federal levels of government by making submissions
and highlighting the concerns of small business on
a wide range of issues. This has included the impact
of unfair contract terms on small business, reducing
red tape in workplace health and safety, maintaining
strong protections for retail tenants, and minimising
duplication in alternative dispute resolution services
for small business.
The core role of the SBDC remains unchanged – to
encourage, facilitate and assist the establishment,
growth and development of small business in
Western Australia. With the new financial year about
to start, the agency will continue to build on its past
achievements and seek innovative ways to meet the
evolving needs of the small business sector in the
future. The Board and SBDC staff will continue to
work with business owners and industry associations
to ensure their contribution to WA’s economy and
resilience is maintained.

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

The agency has clearly demonstrated its ability to
remain effective during a period of change and
I would like to acknowledge all the staff for their
continued hard work and dedication to the small
business sector.
I also recognise and thank all members of the Board
for their interest and commitment over the past
financial year. Their insight and support continues to
provide a valuable contribution to the agency.

Kitty Prodonovich
Chair
SBDC Board
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Executive summary
Operational structure
SBDC Board
The Small Business Development Corporation is
governed by an independent Board, drawn from
the private sector under the auspices of the Small
Business Development Corporation Act 1983.
Membership as at 30 June 2015
• Kitty Prodonovich (Chair)
• Susan Bailey
• Steven Dobson
• Jeff Healy
• Anthony Masi
• Sonia McKeiver
• Allan Pendal
• David Eaton (ex officio)
(For Board members’ biographies see page 40).
Small Business Commissioner
David Eaton is the Small Business Commissioner for
Western Australia and Chief Executive Officer of the
SBDC. This dual role is responsible for the day-today operation of the SBDC and the provision of the
alternative dispute resolution (ADR) service, and
reports to the Board.

9

The key services of the SBDC are:
• small business advisory;
• commercial tenancy advisory;
• dispute resolution;
• business migration;
• policy, advocacy and advice to government; and
• the Small Business Centre program.
Small business advisory services
The SBDC’s core service is the delivery of advice and
guidance to existing and prospective small business
operators to aid the development and growth of
the sector in Western Australia. These services are
provided online, through face-to-face meetings, by
phone and email. They are also delivered through
third parties and the media.
A walk-in service for clients seeking information on
business licensing and regulatory requirements is
available at the business information centre and
tailored business skills workshops are delivered
across a range of topics. (See page 19 for details of
2014-15 achievements.)
Commercial tenancy advisory service
The SBDC provides free information and guidance
on the Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreements
Act 1985 and other aspects of commercial lease
negotiations and operation, with specialist
commercial tenancy advisers assisting in person or
by phone and email.
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The service is supported with publications providing
detailed information on commercial tenancy matters
which are available from the business information
centre or to download from the SBDC website.
(See page 21 for details of 2014-15 achievements.)
Alternative dispute resolution (ADR) service
The ADR service is a low-cost, non-litigious means
of resolving business-to-business and business-togovernment disputes involving small businesses.
The service is particularly useful in resolving retail
tenancy disputes. The SBDC is the first port of call
for businesses experiencing disputes of this kind.
(See page 21 for details of 2014-15 achievements.)
Business migration program
The SBDC delivers the Western Australian business
migration program as a key investment attraction
initiative for the State. Business migrants provide a
significant source of new capital, export income and
employment generation through the establishment
of new, or purchase of existing, businesses.
(See page 26 for details of 2014-15 achievements.)
Policy, advocacy and advice to government
The SBDC ensures the small business voice is heard
and considered by governments at all levels through
submissions, representation and liaison, and is a key
influence in policy development where it relates to
small business. The SBDC conducts regular surveys
to gauge the sentiment of the sector and to inform
government of trends and concerns. (See page 32
for details of 2014-15 achievements.)
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Executive summary
Organisational structure

Small Business Centre program
The SBDC also delivers business advisory services to
small businesses across the State through the Small
Business Centre program. The centres are partially
funded by the State Government through the SBDC.
In 2014-15, there were 23 not-for-profit communitybased centres and one consultant delivering
the program, with 19 located in regional areas.
From 1 July 2015 there will be major changes to the
program when it is replaced by the new Business
Local service. (See page 28 for details of 2014-15
achievements.)

Small Business
Development Corporation

Board of Management

Small Business Commissioner/
Chief Executive Officer

Policy and Advocacy

Policy evaluation and
advice
Advocacy
Regulatory reform
Research and statistics
Business and government
liaison

10
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Communications
and Marketing
Marketing and promotion
Media
Stakeholder liaison
Events

Small Business Services

Advisory services
Alternative dispute
resolution
Business information and
programs
Business migration
Small Business Centre
program
Aboriginal business

Corporate Resources

Financial resources
Human resources
Information resources
Online resources
Administrative support
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Executive summary
Performance management framework
Outcome-based management framework
Government goal: Financial and economic responsibility – responsibly managing the State’s finances through
the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory
burdens on the private sector.
Desired outcome

Effectiveness
indicators

Service

Efficiency indicators

Development of
new and existing
small business in
Western Australia.

The extent to which
clients rate the
usefulness of the
information and
guidance provided
to them.

Information,
guidance, referral
and business
development
services.

• Average cost per direct client contact.
• Average cost per indirect client contact.
• Average cost per Small Business Centre
client contact.
• Cost per unit of policy advice.

Changes to the outcome-based management framework
The SBDC’s outcome-based management framework did not change during the reporting period.
Shared responsibility with other agencies
The SBDC did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2014-15.

More than 18,000 small business owners and
operators including Daisy Bedwell from Pantoufle
in Subiaco, benefited from business advice and
guidance provided by the SBDC.

11
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Agency performance
Financial targets
2014-15 1
Target
$’000

2014-15
Actual
$’000

Total cost of services (expense limit)
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive
Income).

13,995

13,462

(533)

The variation relates to reduced Buy Local Stage 2 (Royalties for
Regions) expenditure deferred to future periods; an exemption
from payroll tax; and reduced salaries expense from delays in filling
vacancies.

Net cost of services
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive
Income).

13,685

13,092

(593)

Added to the reduction in total cost noted above is higher than
expected interest and other miscellaneous revenue.

1,652

1,234

(418)

The 2014-15 budget statements forecast an accumulated surplus
however an accumulated deficit was carried forward from 2013-14
resulting in a reduction in the equity position relative to the budget
statements.

(188)

729

917

The increase in cash held at year end generally relates to additional
CF appropriation negotiated as part of the 2014-15 Mid-Year review.

55

53

(2)

Total equity
(sourced from Statement of Financial Position).

Net decrease in cash held
(sourced from Statement of Cash Flows).
Approved full-time equivalent (FTE) staff
level.

1 As specified in the 2014-15 Budget Statements (Budget Paper No 2 Volume 2) Pages 762-769.
2 Further explanations are also contained in Note 35 “Explanatory Statement” to the financial statements.
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Variation 2
$’000

Explanation

Reduced FTE relates to delays in filling vacant positions.
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Agency performance
Summary of client perceptions
In addition to the audited key performance
indicators (KPIs), the SBDC measures its performance
through client surveys to determine the:
• usefulness of information and guidance provided;
• contribution the service made to an informed
decision to start or buy a business;
• extent the information or guidance benefited the
operations of the business; and
• value to businesses of the guidance or
information received.
In line with previous years, very high levels of
satisfaction were achieved during 2014-15.
• 91 per cent of survey participants rated the
information/guidance provided as very or
somewhat useful.
• 88 per cent believed support provided by the
SBDC or Small Business Centre (SBC) network had
directly contributed to their decision to start or
buy a business.
• 78 per cent of business owners said the
information or advice had benefited the
operations of their business.
• 80 per cent of those surveyed said they valued
the information or guidance received.

Likely to use
service again

93%

Satisfied with overall
SBDC experience

94%
Dynamo Fitness was established in 2012 as a family
owned fitness equipment business. During
2014-15, Ahmad Abbas contacted the SBDC to
discuss business structures and marketing.

91%

Information and
advice was useful
0

20

40

60

80

100

* Telephone surveys were undertaken with a random selection of clients who
had directly sought information and guidance during 2014-15. 711 client
surveys were completed, giving a maximum standard error ratio of + / – 3.6%
at the 95% confidence level. 79% of clients contacted agreed to participate in
the survey.

The SBDC achieved an overall customer service
index rating of 92 per cent. The index measures the
extent to which the SBDC and SBC network satisfies
customer enquiries and requests for assistance. It is
comprised of five individual performance indicators.

13

78%

Information and advice
was of benefit
to their business

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

“

Our business has been going for a while, and
going well, but I needed some advice on
business structures and what to do to attract
more customers.
I saw two advisers at the SBDC, on short notice,
and must admit the meetings and the advice
I got were really inspirational. They showed me
there are several avenues I can take to grow my
business.

”

Ahmad Abbas
DYNAMO FITNESS
MALAGA
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Agency performance
Chief Executive Officer’s report
Small businesses around
the world are an integral
part of thriving economies.
In Western Australia, the
SBDC continues to deliver
vital services to this crucial
component of our own
economy. We provide
basic business information,
advice and specialist
support programs, and
help to resolve complex
disputes through negotiation and mediation. We
also contribute to regulatory reviews and advocate
to government to highlight issues affecting the
sector. Our focus on high service standards remains
paramount and I’m pleased we have maintained
outstanding results in this regard during 2014-15.
For more than 30 years, the SBDC has built a solid
reputation for delivering effective services and
information to small business. Our focus continues
to be on supporting small business owners,
particularly those just starting or intending to start
a business, by providing information and details of
their compliance obligations in a way that is easily
understood.

14

With ever-changing market conditions, businesses
must constantly respond to meet current demands.
Despite this, it is evident that the core needs of small
business operators remain unchanged – maintaining
a healthy cash flow, delivering excellent customer
service, and adapting their business models and
services to a rapidly evolving environment. Building
their resilience is also critical during this challenging
economic period.

Small business is a vital component of our business
community and while some may credit the mining
and resource sector as a major source of Western
Australia’s fiscal success, it is important to remember
the myriad small businesses that assist and support
these industries. It is also interesting to note that
approximately 70 per cent of the private sector
workforce is employed by small and medium-sized
businesses.

The scale and diversity of the sector we service
presents many challenges, while also offering huge
economic and social benefits to our state. To ensure
our services remain cost effective and relevant we
regularly review the way in which we meet the
needs of all small businesses in Western Australia,
regardless of their location. In 2014, this led to a
significant project being undertaken to review the
Small Business Centre program, which had been
operating for the past 20 years. In its place, Business
Local, a new, more efficient method of extending
the reach of advisory services is set to launch on
1 July 2015. This new service will be delivered across
twelve economic regions in Western Australia,
providing a more structured advisory service that
includes initial assessments and follow-up support
for small businesses.

The small business sector makes a very significant
contribution to our economy and the way we live –
yet it is often undervalued. One reason for this is that
while the sector is extremely diverse, it lacks a single
voice speaking on its behalf, but fortunately things
are changing. In November 2014, small business was
included on the agenda of the G20 meeting held
in Australia and Western Australia’s Small Business
Minister Joe Francis has also hosted a meeting with
his state counterparts here in Perth, chaired by
Federal Minister Bruce Billson.

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

The SBDC continues to work closely with all levels
of government in the important areas of policy and
program development, as well as regulatory reform.
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Maintaining a healthy and diverse small business
sector involves rethinking the way it is regulated.
When it comes to reducing the burden of red tape,
it is important for policy-makers to use regulation as a
last resort, balancing the need for regulation against
the level of risk being mitigated. Government agencies
that manage compliance and enforce regulation need
to adopt a culture of compliance through education,
rather than litigation and fines. We remain at the
forefront of advocating for this approach.
Changing times demand commitment on all fronts
and I am pleased to report that the SBDC Board
and staff have been more than up to the challenge
in 2014-15. They have very ably responded to the
significant demands placed on them during the past
year, and have produced some significant results.
In closing, I would like to acknowledge all the small
business owners for the contribution they make to
Western Australia. By keeping small business front of
mind we can all ensure that our economy remains
healthy and diversified, and continues to grow.

In 2014-15, SBDC provided networking
opportunities for small business owners.

David Eaton
Small Business Commissioner
Chief Executive Officer
Small Business Development Corporation

15
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Agency performance

Activity reports
Services to small business

Industry Link 6%
Business
advice
77%

The SBDC provides free, confidential and
independent business-related information,
advice and guidance to the West Australian small
business sector. In 2014-15 the SBDC focussed
on assisting small business start-ups in the
metropolitan area.

Workshops
17%

Forty seven per cent of enquiries were received
from pre-start or new business owners seeking
information and advisory support.

Methods of helping clients
Workshops 10%
Face-to-face
meetings
12%

Telephone
47%

Working in conjunction with the centres, the SBDC
met the needs of clients across all stages of the
business life-cycle from pre-start, development and
growth, through to succession planning and exit
strategies.

Email
31%
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In addition, a further 41,616 client sessions were
undertaken through the Small Business Centre
program.
Business information centre
The business information centre (BIC) is the entry
point for small business services provided by the
SBDC. The BIC provides business and licensing
information, and online resources to streamline the
business start-up process. Assistance is also provided
to help established businesses to grow.

This year SBDC responded to client enquiries via
telephone, email and face-to-face meetings. The
agency continued to provide specialist services in
the areas of alternative dispute resolution (ADR),
business migration and commercial tenancy, and
delivered a range of workshops.

Throughout this period, the SBDC also supported
Small Business Centres across the State as they
provided business advisory services to small business
operators.

Outcomes for 2014-15
The SBDC directly assisted 18,216 clients, seeking
assistance with 22,990 business topics.

How the SBDC engaged with clients

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

Information available at the BIC includes a range
of free business guides and checklists on starting,
developing and managing a small business. Staff
in the centre coordinate the SBDC’s business skills
workshops and assist clients in using the online
Business Licence Finder and the IBISWorld database.
The database provides free access to financial
benchmarking and market research reports on more
than 500 industries across Australia.
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Agency performance
Outcomes for 2014-15
The BIC is the public face of the SBDC, welcoming
workshop participants and clients who are attending
advisory appointments or seeking business-related
information and resources.

Breakdown of all enquiries made direct to SBDC
Others 11%
Clients already
in business 42%

How clients accessed Business Licence Finder information
Created by
client via
SBDC website
73%

Processed by
SBDC staff
27%

During the year, the BIC introduced a number of
new initiatives to assist clients visiting the centre,
including a suite of printed materials focussing on
the needs of start-up clients. Titles are split into
‘practical guides’ and ‘building your support team’.
A large screen in the centre runs a series of ‘TED talks’
featuring business leaders providing inspirational
talks and a promotional video highlighting the
SBDC’s services.
Clients
preparing to
start a business or
operating a new business 47%

Business Licence Finder
During the year, 6,878 clients sought licensing and
regulatory information using the online Business
Licence Finder. This represented a 9.4 per cent
increase on 2013-14.
The most popular topics searched for were:
• National Business Name Registration
• Australian Business Number
• Goods and Services Tax (GST) Registration
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6,878

clients used
Business Licence
Finder
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Workshops
The SBDC delivered 98 workshops to 2,782
participants during 2014-15, generating $46,540
in fees. The workshops delivered were ‘Business
Basics’, ‘Website Basics’, ‘Understanding your Business
Financials’, ‘Spreading the Word – Marketing your
Business’, ‘The 12 Step Business Plan’, and ‘Online
Marketing – doing it yourself’.
Drawing on extensive feedback that revealed clients
were often confused or lacked confidence in online
marketing, a decision was made to launch a new
workshop in July 2014 entitled ‘Online Marketing
– doing it yourself’. The workshop focuses on how
small businesses can maximise their social media
presence.

The free of charge Business Basics continued to be
the most popular workshop, with demand often
exceeding available places. To address this, a ‘Super
Business Basics’ was introduced in January 2015, held
once a month for up to 120 participants. During
2014-15, Super Business Basics was attended by a
total of 424 participants.
In January 2015, data relating to workshop bookings
was incorporated into the main SBDC client
relationship management (CRM) system. The move
to the central system simplified administrative
processes and customer analysis, and improved
customer service by providing auto-generated
emails to clients reminding them of their workshop
bookings.

Tim Daly runs a small business, providing
apprentices to small and large businesses
throughout Western Australia. During 2014-15,
Tim attended the SBDC’s Industry Link suite of
workshops.

“

I wish to express my thanks for conducting the
Better Business workshops.
I was able to attend all four of the workshops and
found them to be excellent. The presenter was
well prepared, knowledgeable and professional.
It was a very worthwhile exercise and I would like
to thank all those who were involved in making it
happen.
Tim Daly
From January to June 2015, more than 420 existing and potential small business
owners attended the SBDC’s Super Business Basics workshops.
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WORKPLACE SERVICES
VICTORIA PARK
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Industry Link
During 2014-15, the Industry Link program continued
to extend the SBDC’s reach to small business
operators by partnering with business, government
and educational organisations. This cost effective
program provides information and guidance on
starting and growing a business and promotes the
SBDC’s services.

38

By providing fundamental business management
information and business skills, Industry Link
contributes to the development of better business
practices and enhanced operator knowledge,
creating a stronger and more sustainable small
business sector. The workshops are delivered free
of charge (however a small fee may be charged for
support materials).
Outcomes for 2014-15
The SBDC partnered with 38 organisations to deliver
40 workshops and events to 1,000 participants.
SBDC representatives also provided advice to groups
on topics such as employer obligations, business
systems, importing/exporting, franchising, business
migration and alternative dispute resolution. SBDC
representatives also joined a panel of experts
to advise business studies students graduating
university on operating a business as a career option.

19

organisations
partnered with
Industry Link
program

Program partners have included a diverse range of
organisations from industry associations, chambers
of commerce and education providers. The program
regularly received excellent feedback from partners
and participants.
Business advisory service
The SBDC provides free, confidential and
independent information and advice across a broad
range of critical areas for businesses at all stages of
their life-cycle. Initial enquiries relating to general
business information and advice are handled by
the business information centre, with more
specialist or complex enquiries referred to the
business advisory team.
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Outcomes for 2014-15
This year the focus was on preparing clients who
were planning to go into business for the first time
or those who had a new business, to help them
become more resilient through the development
of sound business practices. The majority of clients
seeking assistance from the SBDC advisory service
during this financial year had not used the agency’s
services before, and tended to be based in the Perth
metropolitan area.
Enquiries mainly related to the following industry
areas:
• professional, scientific and technical services
(including accounting; legal; and management
services);
• other services (including hairdressing and beauty
services; automotive and mechanical repairs;
business and professional services);
• retail trade;
• accommodation and food services; and
• construction.
The main topics clients sought information about
were:
• starting a business;
• financial management and taxation;
• commercial tenancy;
• licensing and regulations; and
• business planning and research.
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Dispute advice
The SBDC responded to 2,281 dispute-related
enquiries, with 2,234 related to business-to-business
disputes and 47 concerning disputes with a
government agency. In both situations most of the
enquiries were handled by the business advisory
and policy teams, with more complex enquiries
referred to the specialist ADR team for intensive case
management.
Business-to-business dispute enquiries are divided
into two main categories; leasing (commercial
tenancy) and non-leasing.
Types of dispute enquiries received
Leasing
(commercial tenancy)
28%

Commercial tenancy advisory service
A commercial lease is an important part of operating
many small businesses. It is significant in relation
to its associated goodwill, value and future sale.
Leasing business premises is a significant financial
decision, so to assist small business in this area the
SBDC provides information and guidance on the
Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreements Act
1985 (CT Act) and all aspects of negotiating and
leasing business premises.

Main topic of commercial tenancy enquiry
Termination
of tenancies
12%

Rent and
rate reviews
11%

During the life of a lease, misunderstandings and
disputes can arise between the landlord and
the tenant. In such circumstances, the specialist
commercial tenancy advisory service refers clients to
the SBDC’s ADR service to facilitate the resolution of
disputes in a timely and cost-effective manner.
The SBDC provides specialist information and
guidance to small business landlords and tenants
and other industry stakeholders on:
• the operation of the CT Act;
• all aspects of negotiating and leasing business
premises including leasing retail premises in
shopping centres; and
• commercial tenancy disputes.

New tenant
advice 16%

Operating
expenses
11%
Other
41%

Repair and
maintenance issues
9%

Breakdown of dispute-related enquiries
Other
40%

Termination
of tenancies
17%

Rent and
rate reviews
16%

Non-leasing
72%
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Repair and
maintenance issues
13%

Operating expenses
14%
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Outcomes for 2014-15
Commercial tenancy advisers dealt with 2,569
enquiries in 2014-15.
Of these enquiries, 26 per cent related specifically to
a dispute between a landlord and tenant, just over a
quarter of which were subsequently referred to the
SBDC’s ADR service for intensive case management.
Through its experience in advising landlords, tenants
and other stakeholders, the SBDC is well-placed to
monitor and provide feedback to the Government
on the operation of the CT Act.
While changes to the CT Act which commenced
on 1 January 2013 have now been in operation for
over two years, many landlords are still unaware
of their legal responsibility to notify tenants in an
appropriate manner.
Although some stakeholders have suggested
creating a lease register to record relevant retail
lease information, the SBDC receives very few client
enquiries in relation to this. The SBDC will continue
to monitor the mechanism introduced under the
2013 amendments to the CT Act that enables valuers
to obtain rental information, to ensure it adequately
addresses tenants’ needs.

In March 2015, the Senate Economics References
Committee (SERC) reported on its inquiry into
the need for a national approach to retail leasing
arrangements to create a fairer system and reduce
the burden on small and medium businesses and
associated benefits to landlords. The SBDC provided
feedback to the State Government on the SERC’s
recommendation.
In Western Australia, it is the Small Business
Commissioner’s role to determine whether a retail
tenancy dispute should proceed to the State
Administrative Tribunal (SAT). The Small Business
Commissioner has met with the Chief Justice, the
Chief Magistrate and senior members of the SAT
to explore opportunities for improvement in the
administrative processes and interactions between
these dispute resolution bodies.

Alternative dispute resolution (ADR) service –
business-to-business disputes
The 2014-15 financial year marked the third full year of
operation of the SBDC’s alternative dispute resolution
(ADR) service. The service began with the introduction
of the Small Business and Retail Shop Legislation
Amendment Act 2011 and the passing of consequential
amendments to the CT Act in March 2012.
ADR is a voluntary process whereby disputing parties
attempt to resolve their issue with the assistance of
an impartial third party. As part of this process, SBDC
case managers provide assistance to all parties in
dispute, helping them to understand their rights and
responsibilities, clarify issues and explore options to
resolve the matter.
The ADR service gives small businesses an
opportunity to resolve disputes without the need
to engage in a formal legal process. The service
provides a timely and cost-effective approach
to business operators engaged in a dispute with
another business or a government agency. It
provides parties with greater control over the
resolution process and any resulting outcome or
agreement. Early, effective ADR can also have a
positive effect on maintaining ongoing business
relationships.
The SBDC has established a pool of independent,
professional mediators. Where parties are willing to
take a matter to mediation, the SBDC facilitates the
process. The mediation service is subsidised by the
State Government with participating parties both
contributing a small fee.
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Outcomes for 2014-15
This year a total of 491 cases were referred to the
ADR team for intensive case management.
Case managers finalised 451 of these cases
(including 39 from the previous year), with a total
value in dispute of $14.6 million (based on client
estimations). The balance of cases remains active and
will be finalised during the next financial year.

Almost

500

clients received
intensive case
management
through the
alternative
dispute resolution
(ADR) service
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Of the 451 cases finalised, 181 related to commercial
tenancy issues. In around 80 per cent of these
cases, the disputes were finalised as a result of
the assistance provided by an ADR case manager,
thereby removing the need for parties to seek a
determination through the SAT or another decisionmaking body. For the remaining (non-leasing)
disputes, ADR support was primarily provided to
parties in conflict over contractual obligations,
non-payment issues and the non-performance or
non-supply of business-related goods or services.
When a successful outcome is reached through
mediation, the parties draft a mutual agreement
with the assistance of the mediator. A total of
40 mediations were held during the year, with a
successful resolution reached in 29, resulting in
potentially costly litigation being avoided in nearly
73 per cent of cases that went to mediation.
The value of disputes successfully resolved through
the SBDC mediation process in 2014-15 was
estimated at just over $3.1 million.
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Alternative dispute resolution (ADR) service –
business-to-government disputes
As part of the ADR service, the SBDC is also
responsible for investigating business-togovernment enquiries and disputes. The service
assists businesses experiencing difficulty dealing
with Local, State or Federal government agencies
through:
• clarification of government policies and
procedures;
• investigation of the rationale behind government
decisions impacting small businesses;
• communicating small business concerns to
government;
• researching licensing and other red tape issues;
and
• negotiating with government authorities to
determine alternative solutions that are consistent
with legislative and policy requirements and
mutually beneficial to both parties.
The SBDC also uses these business-to-government
enquiries and disputes to identify broader issues
and trends which help inform the agency’s policy
development and advocacy activities.
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Case study

14.6

$

million worth of
disputes finalised by
the alternative dispute
resolution service

Outcomes for 2014-15
During the year, the SBDC investigated 47 disputerelated business-to-government enquiries, with
21 of them requiring intensive case management.
Two thirds of these related to Local Government,
with planning approvals, licensing and tenancy
issues being the most commonly reported
disputes. In relation to State Government enquiries,
which accounted for almost a third of all cases,
occupational/business licensing and tendering issues
were most frequently raised.
In most instances, the SBDC advocated to the
relevant government authority on behalf of the small
business operator to clarify or attempt to resolve
the matter for both parties. However, two disputes
(valued at $60,000) were referred to mediation and
successfully reached an agreement.
23
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Brad and Rhonda had been battling with a business in
Perth for eight months over a refund on a faulty winch.
It was the second winch of the same make to be returned
– the first one lasted only seven months and the second
barely 12 months.

“

Once the winch was returned all attempts to contact the
manager (for our refund) via email and phone calls were
to no avail – all were ignored. We then sent a letter of demand, which was also ignored and finally,
we contacted the manufacturer of the winch who in turn put us onto the supplier in the Eastern
States. Even their attempts to contact the manager were ignored. All the supplier was waiting for was
authorisation from the manager at the business so they could issue a credit for the product – but they
hadn’t done that either.
We resigned ourselves to the fact we would have to proceed to court. We rang the SBDC for advice
and spoke with an ADR (alternative dispute resolution) officer. We emailed all the paperwork and got
a call back the next day to confirm the details. On the third day, the refund of $2,695 was in our bank
account.
We can’t thank the ADR team enough for the fantastic service as they certainly saved us the further
stress and cost of taking the matter to court. We are in the country and at least two and a half hours
drive away from Perth, the business we were chasing, and the courts.
As a point of interest, we ended up buying a $400 winch elsewhere, with the same
capabilities as the expensive one and to this day, it hasn’t missed a beat.
Brad and Rhonda
SIMRON TRANSPORT
NARROGIN

”
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Case study
Robert Zoric operates a
transport business, moving
containers to and from
Fremantle wharf.
In November 2014, Mr
Zoric purchased a truck for
$60,000. Two months later
the gearbox failed.
Mr Zoric was offered no assistance by the dealer until he contacted the SBDC’s alternative
dispute resolution service. The ADR case manager negotiated an agreement with the truck
dealer who covered the full $7,174 repair cost for Mr Zoric’s truck.

“

I would never have solved the problem without the help of the Small Business Development
Corporation.
I contacted the SBDC for help and was given directions on what I needed to do. One week
later my truck was fixed and everything paid for.
It seemed that no one was willing to help, but the SBDC helped me a lot and I will never
forget that.

”

Robert Zoric

RSM TRANSPORT
HENDERSON
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Farm Debt Mediation Scheme
In 2013-14, the SBDC began discussions with the
Department of Agriculture and Food WA (DAFWA)
about the risk of financial failure in the farm and
pastoral sector and the benefits that a Farm Debt
Mediation Scheme (FDMS) could provide for farmers
in severe financial stress and facing defaulting on
their farm loans. Similar schemes had been operating
successfully in New South Wales and Victoria.
With DAFWA’s specialist expertise in relation to
farming and pastoral businesses, and the existing
role that its Rural Business Development Corporation
(RBDC) has in the provision of debt review and
assistance, it was agreed that any pre-mediation case
management under the FDMS would be provided
by the RBDC and DAFWA, with the SBDC facilitating
the mediation process. The majority of the costs
associated with the mediation process are to be met
by DAFWA.
Outcomes for 2014-15
After receiving Cabinet endorsement for the
establishment of the FDMS, the SBDC and the RBDC
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on
2 June 2015 and formally commenced the voluntary
scheme for an initial two year period.
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Ignition program
The SBDC again supported the innovative
Ignition program, run by the Curtin Centre for
Entrepreneurship (C4E) at the Curtin University
Business School.

In June 2015, the SBDC and the Rural Business Development Corporation
signed a memorandum of understanding in regards to the Farm Debt
Mediation Scheme.

This five-day learning program helps entrepreneurs
take their innovative ideas through a disciplined,
intensive process to:
• validate their business concepts;
• help them form the basis of a business plan and
start building a funding proposition;
• receive expert advice; and
• access peer networking, training and mentoring.
The SBDC has been acknowledged as a founding
program partner, having provided financial support
to establish and retain the program since its launch
in 2011. The 2014 funding, which made the SBDC the
principal funder of the program, was allocated as
follows:
• $25,000 towards the delivery of the program, and
• $19,500 to directly fund ten scholarship places.

25
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Outcomes for 2014-15
The SBDC’s $44,500 grant ensured Western Australia
(through the C4E) continues to hold exclusive rights
in Australia to deliver the Ignition program, providing
access to world standard education and support for
local business innovators and inventors.
A C4E report highlights the following outcomes for
the program since 2011:
• 174 entrepreneurs have taken part;
• demand for places has increased more than four
times;
• the majority of participants are involved in the
information technology industry;
• 48 per cent of participants have progressed to
the research and development stage with their
business idea;
• 25 per cent of participants have registered their
intellectual property; and
• 59 new full-time positions have been created by
participants.
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Business Migration program
The SBDC is responsible for managing the Western
Australian Government’s Business Migration
program. This program is a key investment attraction
initiative for the State, as business migrants make
a significant contribution to Western Australia’s
economic well-being. Business migrants are a
leading source of new capital through investment,
establishing businesses, and generating export
income and new employment.
The program attracts migrants to Western Australia by:
• marketing the State as one of the world’s leading
destinations for investment, employment,
education and lifestyle;
• providing information on business visa options as
well as living, working and establishing a business
in Western Australia; and
• supporting qualifying clients with State
nomination to become eligible to lodge a visa
application with the Department of Immigration
and Border Protection (DIBP) under the Business
Innovation and Investment program.
The SBDC also promotes Western Australia to
migration agents and potential business migrants
through local and international marketing initiatives.

26

China continues to be the key market, accounting
for some 55 per cent of all business migrants coming
to the State during 2014-15. Malaysia and Singapore
rank second with a combined 23 per cent.
This year, the SBDC nominated business migrants
from 22 countries to invest and establish businesses
in Western Australia.
To generate maximum exposure for the Business
Migration program and to assist new migrants in
establishing and developing their businesses in
Western Australia, the SBDC has formed strategic
alliances with a range of government and private
sector organisations, including:
• The Department of State Development’s
international trade and investment offices;
jointly participating in events, presentations
and attending appointments with potential
business migrants.
• The Migration Institute of Australia and Western
Australian branches of the Migration Alliance;
providing these organisations with up-to-date
information on the policies and criteria for State
nomination for distribution to migration agents in
Western Australia and overseas.
• Western Australian Chinese Chamber of
Commerce; jointly hosting events with the
Chamber to ensure new business migrants are
aware of the services provided by the SBDC.
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• Guangdong and Fujian Business Associations
in Western Australia; networking with them
in relation to attracting client referrals during
business migration visits to China.
• DIBP; as a member of the national Skilled
Migration Officials Group and participant on the
State Client Reference Group, the SBDC consults
with DIBP to assist with business migration policy
development, strategies and initiatives.

269.9

$

million invested by
business migrants
moving to WA
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Outcomes for 2014-15
During the year, representatives from the SBDC
and Western Australia’s international trade and
investment offices participated in promotional
activities in the State’s prime markets of China,
Singapore and Malaysia. More than 752 potential
business migrants attended 27 presentations
about Western Australia and 156 interviews were
conducted. Training was also provided to 131
overseas migration agents and their staff.
The SBDC also hosted 11 incoming delegations
(comprising 127 delegates) of State nominated and
potential business migrants who came to explore
investment opportunities. A program of business
presentations and visits to various organisations were
arranged for each delegation.
These events formed part of an overall marketing
strategy to attract new migrants and to develop
and build relationships with international trade
offices and migration agents based in prime target
countries.

During 2014-15:
• The SBDC responded to 1,817 enquiries and
nomination applications from migration agents
and prospective business migrants;
• 251 State nominations were approved for new
business migrants to apply for visas to commence
business in Western Australia;
• 136 State nominations were approved for
business migrants on temporary residency visas
to convert to permanent residency visas;
• Two State nominations were approved for
investor retirement visa applicants; and
• $236,750 was raised from State nomination
application fees; which was used to assist with
the cost of servicing clients and migration agents
and the international marketing program.

Investment and businesses established by migrants
range across a variety of industry sectors including
accommodation and property development. Of
the export businesses, most of them focussed on
agricultural products and mining resources.
The table below shows the Business Migration
program’s confirmed economic benefit to
Western Australia.

Confirmed investment from Permanent Residency Business Visa holders

Business migration

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

Total capital in-flow

$304.5m

$260.5m

$259.5m

$269.9m

Capital in business

$104.3m

$78m

$110.7m

$103.9m

WA Treasury Bonds

$21m

$20.5m

$18.7m

$22.2m

Jobs created

145

90

256

124

Businesses exporting

21

13

16

14

The SBDC hosted 11 delegations (127 delegates) of State nominated and
potential business migrants from China to explore investment opportunities
in WA.
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The key outcome for the Western Australian
economy is that the 147 business migrants who
finalised their investment this year injected
$269.9 million into the State through business
establishment, investment in Treasury Bonds,
personal expenditure and settlement costs. This
investment also created 124 new jobs and 14
exporting businesses.
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Small Business Centre program
The Small Business Centre program is the SBDC’s
business advisory outreach service. Service providers
are not-for-profit, non-government organisations
contracted to deliver the program in 25 designated
service areas across Western Australia (19 regional
and six metropolitan areas). In 2014-15, the SBDC
allocated $3.8 million in core operational funding to
the service providers, of which $2.9 million (76 per
cent) was allocated to regional Western Australia.

Jane Page and her family applied to Western
Australia under a business migration visa
and contacted the Business Migration Centre
for advice. With SBDC assistance Jane was
able to secure her visa to live and work in
Western Australia.

“

I cannot thank you enough for all your help in
this matter.
I am so very grateful and so much appreciate
everything you have done, we always thought
it would be difficult but you made it so much
less traumatic.
Jane Page

”

VIRTUAL TRANSCRIPTION & BOOKKEEPING SERVICE
YANCHEP
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Following a 2013 review into the delivery of business
advisory services by third party providers, from 1
July 2014 a number of changes were made to the
program. These included moving to outcomes
based reporting through a funding model based on
the procurement of services. New reporting metrics
were also introduced, enabling the SBDC to estimate
the program’s net economic benefit to the State.
The transformation of the SBC program continued
throughout 2014-15, culminating in a tender
request for a new service called Business Local
being released to the market on 12 January 2015.
The tender, which sought providers to deliver
Business Local in 12 service areas across the State
(nine in regional Western Australia and three in
metropolitan Perth), closed on 18 February 2015 and
the outcome was announced on 11 May 2015. Seven
providers won tenders to deliver the new service
from 1 July 2015. Of those seven, five were existing
SBC providers with the remaining two being new
organisations; one regional chamber of commerce
and one for-profit entity.
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As a result of the review and subsequent tender
process, the SBC program ceased on 30 June 2015
and was replaced by the new Business Local service.

Business Local
A Small Business Development Corporation service
funded by the Government of Western Australia

Outcomes for 2014-15
Throughout 2014-15 the SBC program continued to
support new and existing small business operators
through direct person-to-person business advisory
services, assistance with start-up strategies (in
regional areas only), business growth plans, business
resilience guidance and help with business exits.
During the year, the program reported $78.5 million of
net economic impact for Western Australia, including
increasing business turnover by $15.1 million and
assisting with capital inflow of $29.7 million.
Of the 9,235 businesses touched by the program
during the year, just over 1,000 were start-up
businesses. These businesses received more than
24,000 hours of free advisory services which resulted
in 10,500 formalised action plans that identified a
pathway for clients to resolve a problem, grow the
business or commence operating. The creation of
more than 870 jobs was attributed to the assistance
provided by SBC program service providers.
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Regional Buy Local Initiative
The Regional Buy Local Initiative stage 2 (RBLI 2) is
a Royalties for Regions (RfR) funded joint program
delivered through the Department of Commerce
and the SBDC.
In 2014-15, the SBDC received $470,000 from RfR
to deliver a suite of services to build the capacity
of small businesses enabling them to access major
supply chains in the government and private sectors.
Services provided by RBLI 2 include a program of five
workshops, the development and implementation
of an online business diagnostic tool and a grant
program. The workshops cover:
• Tendering, contracting and pre-qualification;
• Business management skills;
• Website and optimisation essentials;
• Using social media in your business; and
• Talking business – corporate communication for
Aboriginal businesses.
The business diagnostic tool is a step-by-step
process to broadly identify business deficiencies so
that business advisers can then recommend a range
of options to address these issues. This could include
referring the client to professional services such as an
accountant or lawyer. The grant program supports
clients to access these professional services on a
matched dollar for dollar basis, to a maximum of
$5,000 per grant.

Aboriginal business development
The SBDC provides a range of business
services focussed on small business growth
and development. Assisting Aboriginal people
develop and grow businesses is an important part
of the SBDC’s service offering. The agency also
provides dedicated resources to create and foster
collaborative relationships between all tiers of
government and industry in support of Aboriginal
economic participation and development.
Strong relationships have been nurtured with:
• Many Rivers Microfinance to address the financial
exclusion of many Aboriginal business owners;
• the Western Australian Indigenous Tourism
Operators Council (WAITOC) to support
Aboriginal tourism operators; and
• Tourism WA to deliver the State’s Aboriginal
Tourism Strategy.

“

The SBDC also has ongoing relationships with a
range of resource and construction companies,
to ensure their engagement with the Aboriginal
small business community is managed in a
coordinated way.

They have always been very helpful, providing
advice on business essentials to ensure our
business meets statutory requirements and
develops in a sustainable way.

The RBLI 2 program will be rolled out across the
State during 2015, concluding in December.
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Jatu Clothing & PPE is an Aboriginal familyowned business providing quality work clothes
and uniforms for individuals and businesses
throughout Western Australia.

We’ve been meeting with the Small Business
Development Corporation since 2014.

We now have a great business based on a business
model that assists our people and provides our
clients with quality products and service.
Thanks for your support SBDC.
Yvonne Kelly-Osborne
JATU CLOTHING AND PPE, PILBARA

”
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Aboriginal Business Directory WA
The SBDC is responsible for the operational
management of the Aboriginal Business Directory
WA (ABDWA). This Statewide initiative provides
information detailing the capabilities of the more
than 315 registered Aboriginal-owned small
businesses, covering a wide range of product
and service offerings. The government and
private sectors are able to use the directory when
purchasing goods and services such as catering,
stationery, photography services and building
maintenance.
In 2014-15, the ABDWA project was named as a
finalist in the ‘Best practice in collaboration between
government and non-government organisations’
category of the Institute of Public Administration WA
Awards. It was also a finalist in the Premier’s Awards
for Excellence in Public Sector Management, in the
category of ‘Improving Indigenous outcomes’.
The SBDC has continued to work with stakeholders
to increase awareness of the directory and its
benefits, including at presentations, forums and
workshops. An ABDWA Facebook page was
launched to create greater awareness of the
directory and to foster improved engagement with
the Aboriginal community. This channel was also
used to promote workshops and seminars and to
celebrate Aboriginal small business success. To date,
the page has more than 460 followers.
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The SBDC has also worked closely with the
Departments of Finance, Regional Development and
Aboriginal Affairs, and the WA Local Government
Association (WALGA) to develop an Aboriginal
Procurement Action Plan. The plan aims to raise
awareness amongst State and Local Government
procurement officers of the goods and services
available via the directory. The initiative has resulted in:
• the delivery of workshops to staff responsible for
procurement;
• a page being added to the Department of
Finance website to promote Aboriginal suppliers
to procurement officers; and
• a further amendment to the State’s Open and
Effective Competition policy to increase the
threshold at which direct purchases can be made
(without the need to seek alternative quotes)
from $150,000 to $250,000, to take effect from
1 July 2015. The ABDWA is a key element within
this policy, as only listed businesses are able to
claim the threshold exemption.
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Aboriginal Economic Participation Strategy
2012-16
The SBDC has been nominated to work closely
with the Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA)
in relation to the Western Australian Government’s
Aboriginal Economic Participation Strategy 2012-16.
The strategy aims to increase opportunities for
Aboriginal people to participate more fully in the
State’s economy, to strengthen Aboriginal culture and
society, and to ensure Aboriginal people have the
same life opportunities as non-Aboriginal people.
The strategy incorporates a number of initiatives
that have been agreed at the national level within
the framework of the Indigenous Economic
Development Strategy 2011-18 (known as ‘Closing
the Gap’) and the National Indigenous Reform
Agreement.
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Indigenous Tourism Champions Program (ITCP)
The ITCP is a national initiative led by Tourism Australia
and Indigenous Business Australia (IBA) that provides
access to business development specialists, targeted
funding and international and trade marketing for
selected Indigenous cultural tourism businesses. There
are currently 15 Western Australian owned and operated
Aboriginal tourism businesses using the program.
The SBDC oversees the program management in
Western Australia on behalf of Tourism Australia and IBA.

Ausum Initiatives Entrepreneurship Program
The SBDC provides support for this program,
working with the Ausum Initiatives organisation
to mentor Aboriginal students on the principles of
starting and running a small business. It is based on
the guiding principles of the Network for Teaching
Entrepreneurship (NFTE), which aims to increase
participation by Aboriginal students in education
and improving their academic performance.

Baldja Moort is a small business developed by young Aboriginal students to provide traditional dance and cultural workshops at schools and events – 2015 Ausum
Initiatives Entrepreneur of the Year: (L to R) Derek Nannup, Desi Farrell, Jay McLean and Dakota Baker.
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Aboriginal Business Advice
Funding for the Aboriginal Business Unit ended on
30 June 2015. Ongoing advice and support will be
provided to Aboriginal businesses by the SBDC’s
general advisory team and the Business Local service
from 1 July 2015.
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Policy and advocacy
During 2014-15, the SBDC continued to work on
influencing small business policy development and
legislation at State and Federal levels of government.
Drawing on the views and feedback of small
business operators in Western Australia wherever
possible, the SBDC provided strong evidence-based
advocacy to national and state reviews and inquiries
on matters pertaining to a fair and conducive
operating environment for the sector.
With a focus on minimising the impact of red tape,
these advocacy efforts concentrated on ensuring
policy and legislative settings took into account
the needs and aspirations of Western Australian
small business operators. This included having a
significant influence on the development of the
State Government’s new regulatory reform agenda
– with its strategic focus on small business over
the year ahead – as well as contributing to national
reviews of, amongst others, competition policy,
unfair contract term protections, workplace relations
and commercial relationships in the grocery market.
The SBDC also contributed to the development of
the new Office of the Australian Small Business and
Family Enterprise Ombudsman and its enabling
legislation.
Policy development based on direct evidence
and case studies was facilitated by the SBDC
through regular surveying of small business
operators and consultation with industry and
business representatives on a range of topics,
including workplace relations and penalty rates,
32

workers’ compensation reforms, occupational
licensing, mobile telecommunications and business
expectations.
The valuable insights into the needs and
characteristics of the small business sector garnered
from the SBDC’s annual State of Small Business
survey continued to be used by the agency in
its policy review and liaison activity, delivery of
workshops and services, and communications with
stakeholders and government. The fourth instalment
of the survey is scheduled to be conducted during
the first half of 2015-16.
During 2014-15, the SBDC partnered with State
Government agencies, including the Departments of
the Premier and Cabinet, Finance and Commerce, to
advance regulatory reforms that reduce compliance
costs, improve productivity, increase competition
and diversify the economy. Aligned to these
activities, the SBDC also continued to work with
other regulators to address compliance concerns and
promote the importance of the small business sector
as part of the State Government’s deregulation
agenda.
A key theme promoted by the SBDC in these
relationships has been to promote opportunities to
reduce regulatory burden on businesses through
making compliance activities available online.
The SBDC’s credentials as an informed adviser and
representative on policy settings impacting on small
businesses is widely recognised by Commonwealth
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agencies, including the Productivity Commission, the
Australian Competition and Consumer Commission
and the Australian Treasury. This was especially
important given the Federal Government’s heavy
small business, competition policy and taxation
reform agendas during 2014-15.
The SBDC also investigates and advises the Minister
for Small Business on matters affecting small
business. This involves conducting research and
investigating issues through the analysis of relevant
statistical data, engagement with government
and non-government entities, direct liaison with
small business operators and consultation with
stakeholders.
The Minister attended a number of business and
community forums and other functions during
the year to address local small business operators
and was advised by the SBDC on topics of interest
relevant to those audiences.
Among the topics investigated by the SBDC on
behalf of the Minister were issues relating to:
• red tape and the burden of compliance;
• labour relations and the impact of penalty rates;
• payroll tax;
• workers’ compensation laws;
• liquor licensing reforms;
• trading hours and the retail tenancy market;
• the low value threshold for GST on overseas
purchases;

CONTENTS

OVERVIEW
OF AGENCY

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

AGENCY
PERFORMANCE

DISCLOSURES
AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT
ISSUES IMPACTING
THE AGENCY

APPENDIX

Agency performance
• payment disputes and ‘phoenix’ activity in the
construction industry;
• government tenders and procurement policies;
• impacts on businesses from public works;
• unfair contract terms in business-to-business
contracts;
• the review of competition policy; and
• mobile and internet connections across regional
Western Australia.

Reviews, submissions and consultations
An important function of the SBDC is to monitor
and review regulatory reforms and amended
legislative proposals. This includes liaising with
other government agencies and small business
stakeholders to ensure the impacts of policy and
regulatory decisions on the sector are understood
and addressed.
Regular consultation with key small business
representative groups is central to the SBDC
remaining informed of issues and emerging trends.
The SBDC maintains and values strong engagement
with a number of representative groups, including:
• The Regional Chambers of Commerce
and Industry WA (RCCIWA) via Statewide
teleconferences and biannual conferences.
The SBDC recognises the RCCIWA as the
peak organisation representing the interests
of chambers of commerce and industry and
business associations in the regions, whose
collective membership totals more than 9,000
businesses.
• The Chamber of Commerce and Industry WA
(CCIWA) in relation to its ongoing business
advocacy role to government and being a
member of its Small Enterprise Network advisory
panel. The panel aims to generate and influence
debate on small business policy issues at State
and Federal levels, including tax reform and
reducing the regulatory burden.

Among the topics investigated by the SBDC were issues relating to payment
disputes and ‘phoenix’ activity in the construction industry.
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• The Combined Small Business Alliance of Western
Australia (CoSBA), the State’s peak small business
organisation representing business associations,
local chambers of commerce and other small
business support organisations.
• The Australian Competition and Consumer
Commission on small business and franchising
policy matters in relation to aspects of the
Competition and Consumer Act 2010, including the
Australian Consumer Law, Franchising Code of
Conduct and Authorisations and Determinations.
By providing formal submissions or liaising directly
with relevant agencies, the SBDC ensures the
interests of small business are considered when
proposed legislative amendments, new regulations
or government policy may potentially have an
impact on the sector.
Outcomes for 2014-15
During the year, the SBDC provided input to a
number of significant reviews and regulatory
proposals at State and Federal levels including:
• Competition Policy Review – Australian Treasury
(Cth);
• Inquiry into Unfair Contract Terms and Small
Business – Australian Treasury (Cth);
• Relative Costs of Doing Business in Australia:
Retail Trade – Productivity Commission (Cth);
• Statutory review of the Construction Contracts Act
2004 (WA) – Building Commission, Department of
Commerce (WA);
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• Inquiry into Business Set-up, Transfer and Closure
– Productivity Commission (Cth);
• Standard trading hours under the Commercial
Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreements Act 1985 (WA) –
Department of Commerce (WA);
• Improving Commercial Relationships in the Food
and Grocery Sector – Australian Treasury (Cth);
• Proposed Planning and Development (Local
Planning Schemes) Regulations 2014 –
Department of Planning (WA);
• Draft Work Health and Safety Bill 2014 (WA) –
WorkSafe (WA);
• Review of the Small Business Support Line –
Australian Treasury (Cth);
• Inquiry into the Workplace Relations Framework
(Review of the Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth) and Fair
Work Commission) – Productivity Commission
(Cth);
• Exposure Draft of the Bill to Extend Unfair
Contract Term Protections to Small Businesses –
Australian Treasury (Cth); and
• Exposure Draft of the Australian Small Business
and Family Enterprise Ombudsman Bill 2015 –
Australian Treasury (Cth).
Through this involvement, the SBDC has successfully
influenced policy outcomes at State and Federal
levels of government. This has included raising the
impact of penalty rates on small business, reducing
red tape, maintaining strong protections for retail
tenants and minimising the duplication of alternative
dispute resolution services.
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Regulatory gatekeeping
Proposals for new or amended regulation in
Western Australia are subject to a Regulatory
Impact Assessment (RIA) process, as managed
by the Regulatory Gatekeeping Unit (RGU) of the
Department of Finance. Depending on the level of
a proposal’s impact, the process involves two stages
of review; a Preliminary Impact Assessment (PIA)
that identifies the impacts on small businesses, the
economy and consumers, followed by a Consultation
Regulatory Impact Statement (RIS) if the impact is
significant. This is followed by a Decision RIS.
The SBDC plays an important role in the RIA process
by reviewing PIAs and RISs and providing comments
to the RGU and/or agency progressing the proposal
from a small business perspective.
Outcomes for 2014-15
The SBDC reviewed 16 PIAs originating from 11
agencies throughout the year. The SBDC’s feedback
on these proposals ranged from general support with
no objections, a recommendation of increased clarity
of the proposal’s purpose and intended outcomes
to a recommendation of further consultation
with stakeholders, comments about reducing the
compliance burden imposed on businesses (including
the frequency of reporting, encouraging online form
lodgement and payments, and considering the end
user when developing new forms).
During the year, the SBDC also contributed to the
review of the PIA form as part of the RGU’s review of
the RIA process.
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Influencing regulatory reform
During 2014-15, the SBDC’s activities relating to
regulatory reform and reducing unnecessary
compliance burdens on small businesses were highly
successful. A cross-agency project developed a
framework to examine regulatory burden on small
businesses. Findings from the project were reported
to the Department of the Premier and Cabinet,
providing input for Western Australia on the
Council of Australian Governments’ (COAG)
deregulation agenda.
The SBDC has long advocated that reducing
unnecessary impacts from state-based regulation
and compliance on small businesses would
require a reform agenda endorsed by the Western
Australian Government. The SBDC established strong
relationships with key stakeholders to influence the
development of the State’s regulatory reform agenda.
Outcomes for 2014-15
A project to develop a methodology to identify
regulatory burden on small businesses was
completed during 2014-15. A case study to establish
a hypothetical café in Perth was used to map the
Local, State and Federal Government regulations
applicable to the business ‘start-up’ phase. A report
which detailed the burdens imposed on the café
owners, also included new information, frameworks
and tools to define and measure regulatory burden.
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The SBDC played a key advisory role during the
development of the State Government’s Plan
for Reinvigorating Regulatory Reform (‘the Plan’)
announced on 30 March 2015. The Plan focuses
on reducing red tape and promotes a whole-ofgovernment approach to drive innovation and
reduce barriers to entrepreneurial activity.

Communications and marketing
The SBDC uses a range of on and off-line channels
to engage with its clients and stakeholders. The
channels are used to raise awareness of the small
business sector and its value to the State’s economy,
and to promote the SBDC’s support services
available to business owners and operators.
A broad range of communications activities are
employed including public relations, marketing,
advertising, events, social media activities, speaking
opportunities, content marketing and distributing
news stories to local, State and interstate media.
The SBDC raises awareness of its support for small
business and key stakeholders in regional areas
by sponsoring local small business awards and
managing a Statewide awards program.

Outcomes for 2014-15
Media and public relations
The SBDC used a variety of paid and earned
media to promote the agency’s services and the
importance of the small business sector to the State’s
economy. Over the past year the SBDC’s key earned
media and public relations coverage included:
• results of small business surveys and polls
including the SBDC Business Expectations survey;
• Western Australian Regional Small Business
Awards;
• the effects of the new Franchising Code of
Conduct;
• the impact of new Chain of Responsibility road
transport laws on small business owners;
• details of a new national Food and Grocery Code
of Conduct and its impact on small business;
• the termination of the Small Business Centre
program; and
• the introduction of the new Business Local
service commencing 1 July 2015.
Promotion of these topics was undertaken through
media releases, inclusion in the SBDC e-news, front
page website news bulletins and magazine articles.

The SBDC maintains strong engagement with a number of stakeholder
groups including the Regional Chambers of Commerce and Industry
(RCCIWA)
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During the year in review, 23 magazine articles
were written for business and trade publications, on
topics including understanding business financials,
business continuity planning, the impact of new
Chain of Responsibility laws on small business,
tips for first time employers and innovation in
small business. Articles created by the SBDC were
published in Brush Strokes (Master Painters and
Decorators), The Grower (Vegetables WA), MTA News
(Motor Trades Association), Belmont Business Talk (City
of Belmont) and Inside Small Business magazine.
The SBDC has access to vast networks of small
business owners and organisations around the State,
and works closely with other government agencies
to raise awareness of legislation and regulations that
impact on small business. During 2014-15, the SBDC
assisted the Department of Commerce (Consumer
Protection), Main Roads, the Australian Taxation
Office and the WA Local Government Authority to
promote and inform the small business sector about
important developments. The SBDC also provided
support ahead of the State’s first Small Business
Day, planned for 11 July 2015, which is part of a new
‘Small Business Matters’ movement.
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In total, 13 media releases were distributed and
12 e-news editions published to a database of more
than 5,000 small business owners, including business
and industry associations. More than 124 articles
featuring the Small Business Commissioner, the
SBDC or Small Business Centres appeared in local
and national newspapers and online news services
during the year in review.
Through a well established relationship with the
media, the SBDC is recognised as a reliable source
of small business information and statistics, and a
ready source of introductions for journalists seeking
successful small business owners for print and
television stories.
Speeches and briefing notes for a significant
number of events were provided to the office of
the Minister for Small Business, to communicate the
significance of the small business sector and the
services of the SBDC.
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The SBDC Facebook page was seen by more than 206,800 users,
representing an increase of 77 per cent on the previous 12 months.
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Digital communications
During 2014-15, the SBDC e-newsletter became
fully integrated with the customer relationship
management (CRM) system. Subscribers include
small business owners, industry and business
associations, chambers of commerce and industry
and the Small Business Centre network.

This resulted in 2,640 clicks through to the SBDC
website (a click-through rate of 2.2 per cent). While
this is quite a low engagement rate through desktop
computers, it is around average for mobile devices.
This was a pilot campaign, with the outcomes revealing
the need for the SBDC’s website to be optimised to
improve accessibility from mobile devices.

A new layout, with click-throughs to ‘read more’ on
the SBDC website, allowed articles of greater depth
to be featured. The average monthly opening rate of
27 per cent is at industry standards, and the clickthrough rate was consistently high.

Consistent with the profile in previous years,
58 per cent of the SBDC’s Facebook followers are
female. Women aged 35-44 are particularly active
in engaging with the SBDC page, making up 21 per
cent of all fans and 27 per cent of those who engage
with the page (i.e. those who like, comment or share
posts). Almost 81 per cent of followers are based in
Australia with nearly 61 per cent of these being from
Western Australia.

Stakeholder engagement through the SBDC’s
Facebook page continued to grow. The number of
people ‘liking’ the page increased by 68 per cent in
comparison to the previous year, with the number of
posts made by the SBDC to the page doubling. The
posts were seen by more than 206,800 users, 77 per
cent up on the previous 12 months.
Facebook advertising continued to be used, which
in turn helped drive traffic to targeted messages
on the SBDC website focussing on building interest
and attendance at workshops. With only a limited
marketing budget a low cost campaign of sponsored
Facebook posts was implemented during January
(a time when people often consider starting their
own business) to drive traffic to the SBDC website
to boost attendance at workshops. The campaign
reached more than 51,000 unique viewers, with an
average viewing frequency (i.e. the number of times
individuals saw an SBDC advert) of 2.32.
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In November 2014, the SBDC launched a new
Facebook group ‘I’m a small business owner in
Western Australia’ to provide a virtual networking
space for small business operators. It is an
environment where people genuinely interested in
small business can feel comfortable in sharing and
connecting with each other. The group members
actively participate in discussions and have created
a self-moderating online community. There was a
consistently high level of engagement with new
discussions and comment threads posted every
day. The group is monitored around the clock by
members of the Communications and Marketing
team to ensure adherence to the group’s guidelines
and the swift removal of gratuitous advertising.
Membership had grown to almost 1,500 by the end
of the year.
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Tom Walker is a young entrepreneur who joined
the SBDC’s ‘I am a small business owner in
Western Australia’ Facebook group in 2015.

“

The group has been very helpful in the development
of my surfwear business Seacrets Surf.
Seacrets had been up and running for over a year
when in early April I decided to operate my first
market stall. In short, it didn’t go very well and
I asked the group about ideas for future stalls.
I received 74 replies from individuals with a number
of creative ideas which have been really helpful.
The group is a great resource for small businesses
from Western Australia and I am constantly
learning from the experience of others while
reading their posts. I highly recommend it to
other small business owners.
Tom Walker
SEACRETS SURF, CITY BEACH

”
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Small business sponsorships and support
The SBDC continued to actively support small
business award programs in regional areas that feed
into the SBDC’s Western Australian Regional Small
Business Awards program. In 2014-15, $57,000 in
sponsorship was provided to 20 events. While during
the early part of the year this included selected
metropolitan programs, as a result of budget
constraints, support was later reduced to regional
events that fed into the SBDC’s awards program.

These regional award programs, managed by local
Small Business Centres, chambers of commerce and
business associations, help raise the profile of small
businesses in regional areas and acknowledge their
significant contribution to local communities. The
SBDC’s support of these programs and resulting
branding and speaking opportunities also helped
to raise the profile of the agency and the services it
provides directly and through partner organisations
to all areas of the State.
Transition from Small Business Centres to
Business Local
In anticipation of the closure of the Small Business
Centre network, significant work was undertaken to
create a new name and branding for the replacement
service. A look and feel for the Business Local service
was developed to closely align with the SBDC’s
overall brand colour palette and to echo the ‘circles’
design, so positioning it as an SBDC outreach service.
A range of supporting point of sale material for use
by the service providers was created in anticipation of
the Business Local launch on 1 July 2015.
38

Business Local
A Small Business Development Corporation service
funded by the Government of Western Australia

Western Australian Regional Small Business Awards
The 12th annual Western Australian Regional Small
Business Awards program received applications
from across the State, and culminated in a gala
presentation event held in Perth in November 2014.
The Awards celebrate the achievements of the
small business sector in regional areas by providing
Statewide recognition for winners of local business
award programs that are supported by the SBDC.

The 2014 presentation event was attended by the
Minister for Small Business, small business operators,
their staff, families and friends, managers and chairs
of Small Business Centres, regional chambers of
commerce and industry, and business associations,
along with sponsoring companies and media
representatives.
Prizes of $1,000 (cash) were provided to each
category winner, while the overall winner also
received a $25,000 airtime package provided by
major sponsor, the GWN7 television network,
and production of an advertisement provided by
supporter Lomax Media.
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Tracey Loubser, owner of Confident Cashflows, Peel was the winner of the
Home-based Business category of the 2014 Western Australian Regional
Small Business Awards.
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The category award winners for 2014 were:
• Business of the Year – Mandurah Cruises and Gift
Shop, Peel
• Home-Based Business – Confident Cashflows
PLUS, Peel
• Franchise Business – IGA Pink Lake, Esperance
• Business Achiever – Inspired Health Club,
Kalgoorlie
• Aboriginal Business – Koomal Dreaming, South
West
• Business with 0-4 employees – HideAway Haven,
Great Southern
• Business with 5-10 employees – Southern
Skydivers, South West
• Business with 11-20 employees – Mandurah
Cruises and Gift Shop, Peel

During 2014-15, the SBDC secured Royalties for Regions
funding of $840,000 to support the Western Australian
Regional Small Business Awards program over the
next four years. This additional funding will allow the
overall program to grow significantly. In support of
this growth, the program has developed an awards
workshop to boost the quality of award submissions
received at the local and State levels.

The funding has also allowed new regional award
programs to be created in Manjimup, Onslow and
Katanning.
A new logo for the 2015 program was been created
reflecting the overall branding of the SBDC, and a
departure from the stylised swan and State emblems
used in the past.

The 2014 Regional Small Business Hall of Fame
inductee, also announced at the presentation
evening, was Ray Philp from Bunbury. Mr Philp was
recognised for his outstanding contribution to small
business including his role as CEO of the Bunbury
Chamber of Commerce and Industry.
The event received Statewide media coverage and
winners were also highlighted in full and doublepage advertisements in The West Australian and the
regionally distributed Regional Lifestyle Magazine.
The advertising was supported by a sponsorship
package from the West Regional Newspaper Group.
Social media continued to provide an excellent
vehicle for broad event coverage with the SBDC’s
Facebook page used to highlight supporting
regional events, sponsors and winners.
39

Mr Ray Philp (centre) 2014 Inductee to the Western Australian Regional Small Business Hall of Fame.
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Corporate governance
Governance disclosures
Enabling legislation
The Small Business Development Corporation Act
1983 makes provision for the establishment of the
Small Business Development Corporation and Small
Business Commissioner to encourage, promote,
facilitate and assist the establishment, development
and carrying on of small business in the State and for
incidental and other purposes.
SBDC Board
The SBDC is governed by a Board, drawn from the
private sector under the auspices of the Small Business
Development Corporation Act 1983. The eight-member
Board (including the Commissioner as ex officio)
meets on a monthly basis to consider issues relevant
to the direction and operation of the agency.

Membership as at 30 June 2015 comprised:
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Kitty Prodonovich
Kitty Prodonovich initially joined
the Board in May 2008 and took
up her position in September
2008. Ms Prodonovich was
appointed Chair of the Board on
1 October 2014. Ms Prodonovich
has owned or operated a number
of small businesses, including
two award winning businesses
in the Goldfields. She was the
recipient of the Goldfields Young
Achiever Award and winner of
the 2002 Goldfields Business of
the Year. She was elected the
youngest executive member of
the Kalgoorlie Boulder Chamber of
Commerce and Industry and is a
past president. Ms Prodonovich is
also Chief Executive Officer of the
Regional Chambers of Commerce
and Industry WA.
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Susan Bailey
Susan Bailey was appointed to the
Board in April 2014. Ms Bailey is
a former owner of two furniture
and homeware stores, and has
30 years experience working with
builders and other small business
participants in the residential
construction industry. Ms Bailey is
past president of the WA Housing
Industry Association, a Board
member of the Construction
Training Fund Board, and a
consultant to the industry.

Steven Dobson
Steven Dobson was appointed to
the Board in September 2012.
Mr Dobson is a director of a
family-owned financial planning
firm, specialising in advice to small
business owners. He has worked
and volunteered with several
state government emergency
service agencies and not-for-profit
organisations, gaining experience
in corporate governance and
volunteer management. Mr
Dobson has a Master of Business
Administration from Murdoch
University, a Bachelor of Business
(Financial Planning) from RMIT
University and is a Graduate
Member of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors.
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Jeffrey Healy
Jeffrey Healy was appointed
to the Board in September
2012. Mr Healy is founder
and owner of a niche
marketing consultancy in
Perth specialising in direct
marketing. He has had an
extensive career in sales,
marketing and retail including
a period with Australia Post as
Change Management Lead,
State Retail Manager and
Marketing Manager.
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Anthony Masi
Anthony Masi was appointed
to the Board in April 2014.
Mr Masi is a pharmacist and
has owned and operated
successful small businesses
in regional Western Australia
since 1991. These include a
camera store, a health food
shop, an IGA grocery store
and two pharmacies. He
currently employs 35 staff in
Broome. Mr Masi is a board
member of the Kimberley
Pilbara Medicare Local
and Boab Health, and Vice
President of The Pharmacy
Guild of Australia (WA
Branch). He is also an active
member of the Kyle Andrews
Foundation Inc, a Broomebased children’s cancer
charity, where he was Chair
from 2008-10 and currently
serves as treasurer.
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Sonia McKeiver
Sonia McKeiver was
appointed to the Board
in September 2012. Ms
McKeiver has degrees in law
and economics from the
University of Queensland, as
well as broad experience in
investigations, compliance
and dispute resolution
gained through her roles
as compliance officer with
the Financial Services
Authority in London and case
manager with the Financial
Ombudsman Service in
Melbourne. Ms McKeiver
is also a board member of
Churchlands Primary School.
She is currently employed
by the Office of the Auditor
General and conducts
performance audit work.

Allan Pendal
Allan Pendal was appointed
to the Board in October
2014. Mr Pendal is co-owner
of a real estate business in
Kalgoorlie-Boulder. He has
extensive experience in the
finance/banking sector and
was Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of a large
public company.
Mr Pendal is currently Chair of
ASX listed Goldfields Money
Limited and Deputy Mayor of
the Kalgoorlie-Boulder City
Council.

David Eaton (ex officio)
David Eaton was appointed
Western Australia’s first Small
Business Commissioner
and CEO of the SBDC in
December 2011. In this dual
role, Mr Eaton is responsible
for the day-to-day operations
of the SBDC as well as the
alternative dispute resolution
service for small business.
Mr Eaton has extensive
management experience,
after owning a business he
then went on to a successful
career with Australia Post,
becoming a member of the
National Executive when
he was appointed State
Commercial Manager in 2003.
Mr Eaton is a Graduate
Member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors
and an advisory board
member of Curtin University.
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Functions of the Board
As the SBDC’s governing body, the Board has
responsibility for performing the functions set out in
the Small Business Development Corporation Act 1983.
The SBDC Board has four strategic roles:
1. setting the direction of the agency;
2. determination of standards;
3. coordination of planning, policies, and decisionmaking frameworks; and
4. acting in an advisory capacity to the Minister, the
Government and other agencies.
Operational roles of the Board include:
• setting strategies;
• focussing on client service and customer needs;
• striving for organisational best practice and
compliance with standards; and
• delegation of operational decision-making to
officers within the SBDC.

Members current as at 30 June 2015
Terms of appointment/meetings attended
Name

Initially appointed

Term expires

12/05/2008
07/04/2014
10/09/2012
10/09/2012
07/04/2014
10/09/2012
01/10/2014

01/10/2017
01/04/2017
30/09/2015
30/09/2015
01/04/2017
30/09/2015
01/10/2017

Ms Kitty Prodonovich
Ms Susan Bailey
Mr Steven Dobson
Mr Jeffrey Healy
Mr Anthony Masi
Ms Sonia McKeiver
Mr Allan Pendal 2
Mr David Eaton (ex officio)

Members whose terms expired during the reporting period

Name
Mr Ray Mountney

Initially appointed

Term expired

03/08/2009

30/09/2014

Board remuneration

Position

Name

Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Chair
Member

Ms Kitty Prodonovich
Ms Susan Bailey
Mr Steven Dobson
Mr Jeffrey Healy
Mr Anthony Masi
Ms Sonia McKeiver
Mr Ray Mountney
Mr Allan Pendal

1 A total of 11 meetings held during the 2014-15 reporting period
2 Appointed 1/10/2014 – attended first meeting in November 2014
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2014-15
meetings attended1
11
10
9
10
9
10
7
10
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Type of
remuneration
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual

Period of membership
Full year
Full year
Full year
Full year
Full year
Full year
Part year (3 months)
Part year (9 months)

Gross/actual
remuneration
19,701.81
9,496.21
9,496.21
9,496.18
9,496.18
9,496.18
6,559.14
6,829.95
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Directors and officers liability insurance
The SBDC takes out directors and officers liability
insurance through RiskCover to provide cover for
members of the Board. The policy has an indemnity
limit of $10 million and for 2014-15 the SBDC
contributed $6,639 towards the annual premium
with individual Board members also making a
personal contribution.
Corporate resources
The corporate resources team provides support to
the agency through:
• financial management including budgeting and
accounting services;
• human resource management;
• online services management;
• information technology infrastructure
management;
• records, library and information management
services;
• facilities management including assets, fleet,
accommodation and procurement; and
• general administration.
Other financial disclosures
Internal audit
The SBDC outsources its internal audit function
which focuses on the effectiveness of key processes
and controls in order to satisfy the compliance
requirements of the Financial Management Act 2006
and applicable Treasurer’s Instructions.
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The audit provides assurance to the SBDC Board and
management in relation to the quality, reliability,
adequacy and integrity of the systems of internal
control, compliance and reporting.
Pricing policies
The SBDC collects the following fees:
• Alternative dispute resolution (mediation) fee; set
at $125 per disputing party, it represents partial
cost-recovery for the Government. The total cost
of each mediation session is generally $900 with
the SBDC subsidising the difference between the
cost and fees received.
• Application fees for business migrants seeking
State nomination to relocate to Western Australia;
currently set at $500 for a provisional business
visa and $750 for a permanent business visa.
The fees represent partial cost-recovery for the
processing of applications under the Business
Innovation and Investment Visa as part of the
Business Migration program.
• The agency runs a series of subsidised workshops
to build business skills and increase management
expertise. Fees for these workshops are set at a
level to encourage existing and intending small
business operators to attend.

The agency’s fees and charges are reviewed annually
as part of the budget process.
Finance and Audit Management Committee (FAMC)
The FAMC comprises up to three Board members,
the Small Business Commissioner and the Director
Corporate Resources (Chief Finance Officer).
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The primary functions of the FAMC are to:
• report to the Board and provide appropriate
advice and recommendations on matters relating
to accounting practices, internal control and
financial risk management; and
• review and make recommendations to the Board
in respect to the annual budget.
During the year the FAMC met on one occasion
to review internal and external audit results, and
the 2015-16 budget process and timing, financial
management and risk management.
Our people
Workforce development
Following the introduction of a new Performance
Development Plan (PDP) in late 2013, staff participation
in the process has increased, and consistency in which
the process is applied has improved.

Completing individual PDPs has resulted in staff
making a more positive contribution to the agency,
particularly in relation to the following areas:
• The goals identified are more specific and
measurable; this in turn contributes to staff
feeling a sense of achievement.
• Including a capability assessment has increased
opportunities for discussions between managers
and staff, allowing higher level goals to be
explored. This has opened up opportunities to
improve performance and further develop skills.
Providing feedback and focussing on the value it has
on staff motivation remains a priority for the agency.
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Staffing summary – as at June 2015

Employee profile

2014-15

Permanent full-time

42*

Permanent part-time

10*

Fixed term full-time

4

Casual

8

Total

64

* Two permanent full-time and one permanent part-time employees were on
parental leave as of 30 June 2015.

Reconciliation Action Plan 2015 – 2017
The SBDC’s Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP)
has been developed to create awareness and
understanding of the needs, skills and contribution
to the State by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
(‘Aboriginal’) business operators and to foster
meaningful engagement across the agency and
the broader small business sector. The RAP was
endorsed by Reconciliation Australia in March 2015.

In line with the SBDC’s strategic plan, the RAP further
demonstrates how the agency values:
• Enterprise – through the development and
empowerment of Aboriginal owned and
operated small businesses;
• Focus – reinforce existing and building new
channels in support of Aboriginal small business
operators;
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• Independence – ensuring that the SBDC is a
trusted and credible partner in supporting
Aboriginal enterprise development in Western
Australia;
• Fairness – advocating for an economic and
policy environment where all Aboriginal small
businesses can thrive; and
• Collaboration – actively engage with partners
to create more inclusive strategic relationships
to deliver better outcomes and relationships for
Aboriginal small business operators.
It is important to build strong relationships between
the Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal business
sectors to ensure collaboration, recognition and
promotion of business activities and aspirations.
It is envisaged that the SBDC’s role in building
relationships will create a better understanding and
acknowledgement of the similarities, legitimacy,
contribution and diversity of Aboriginal businesses
within the broader economy.
Leading by example and creating a culturally
inclusive environment increases accessibility to the
SBDC’s services and enables the agency to promote
success, assist business start-ups, ensure growth and
development, and raise the profile of Aboriginal
businesses across Western Australia.
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Occupational health and safety (OHS) and injury
management
The SBDC is committed to ensuring operational
activities are carried out with full regard for
the health, safety and welfare of employees,
contractors and the public. This year a major review
of the agency’s Occupational Health and Safety
Management System (OHSMS) was undertaken to
create a more positive culture in relation to health
and safety issues and an increased emphasis on
management commitment and consultation.
The revised OHSMS included more details relating
to OHS responsibilities across the agency, including
when it should consult with employees.
Situations identified included:
• investigating incidents;
• deciding on measures to control risks;
• reviewing the effectiveness of controls;
• changes in work practices and procedures; and
• the planning of new work or work processes.

It is the SBDC’s policy to comply with all provisions
of the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984, OHS
Regulations and Code of Practice: Occupational
Safety and Health in the Western Australian Public
Sector.
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Consultative mechanisms
The SBDC acknowledges its responsibility for
consultation on OHS matters. A consultative process
is provided through senior management meetings,
monthly all-staff meetings, team meetings, and by
individual incident reporting. Details of the OHSMS,
Injury Management System and related policies
are available on the staff intranet. OHS matters and
issues are also a standing agenda item for discussion
at Board meetings.

Injury Management System
The Injury Management System has been developed
to support the SBDC’s injury management policy
and is fully compliant with the requirements of the
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act
1981.

Indicator

Information on how to lodge a workers’
compensation claim is provided by the Human
Resources Coordinator and Director Corporate
Resources following the reporting of any OHS
incidents.
2013-14 actual

2014-15 target

2014-15 result

Number of fatalities

0

0

0

Lost time injury/disease (LTI/D)

0

0 or 10% reduction on previous year

Maintained zero result

Lost time injury/disease severity rate

0

0 or 10% improvement on previous
year

Maintained zero result

n/a
no injured workers

100%

n/a
no injured workers

60%

Greater than or equal to 80%

83.33%

Percentage of injured workers returned to work within (i) 13 weeks and
(ii) 26 weeks
Percentage of managers trained in occupational safety, health and injury
management responsibilities
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Workers’ compensation
The SBDC is committed to managing employees
who sustain an injury or illness at work or elsewhere.
The agency applies a practical approach to claims
management in relation to injury management
and rehabilitation. To 30 June 2015, no workers’
compensation claims were lodged and there was
no lost time.
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Online resources and information technology

ICT (information and communications technology)
systems and upgrades
Click Dimensions, a platform that integrates with
the agency’s client relationship management (CRM)
system, has been introduced, allowing clients to
subscribe to the e-newsletter from the SBDC website
or Facebook page. Click Dimensions is also used to
provide reminders to clients attending workshops
and events, which has significantly improved
attendance rates.
The agency’s network infrastructure has been
upgraded to incorporate a new firewall.

SBDC website
The website remains a popular source of information
about operating a small business in Western
Australia. With most people using search engines to
seek answers to direct questions it is essential that
websites are search engine-optimised and ranked
highly. More than 85 per cent of visitors to the
SBDC’s site arrived via a search engine with Google
providing the majority of referrals.

A new extranet has been created to provide
resources for Business Local providers for when the
service commences on 1 July 2015.
Upgrades to the intranet have provided a platform
that complements the records management system
and provides easy access to the agency’s policies,
guidelines and reference materials.
Outcomes for 2014-15
During 2014-15, the number of visitors to the SBDC
website grew, with the number of clients spending
four minutes or more increasing by 20 per cent.
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Independent auditor’s report
7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth
MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849
TEL: 08 6557 7500 FAX: 08 6557 7600

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Small Business Development Corporation.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Corporation’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Corporation determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit
be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Corporation’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Corporation, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Small Business Development
Corporation at 30 June 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Treasurer’s Instructions.
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Independent auditor’s report
Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by the Small Business Development Corporation during the year ended 30 June 2015.
Controls exercised by the Small Business Development Corporation are those policies and procedures established by the Corporation to ensure that the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions.
Corporation’s Responsibility for Controls
The Corporation is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition
and disposal of public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and
other relevant written law.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the controls exercised by the Small Business Development Corporation based
on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls to ensure that the Corporation complies with the legislative
provisions. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation of relevant controls.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Small Business Development Corporation are sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions during
the year ended 30 June 2015.
Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Small Business Development Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2015.
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service
provision.
Corporation’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006
and the Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Corporation determines necessary to ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated
performance.
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Independent auditor’s report
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance
with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the Corporation’s preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of outcome
achievement and service provision.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Small Business Development Corporation are relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Corporation’s
performance and fairly represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2015.
Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and
other relevant ethical requirements.
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the Small Business Development Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2015
included on the Corporation’s website. The Corporation’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Corporation’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on
the integrity of the Corporation’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. It does not provide
an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial statements
and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial
statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators.

DON CUNNINGHAME
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL FINANCIAL AUDIT
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia
16 September 2015
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Certification of key performance indicators
We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Small Business
Development Corporation’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Small Business Development Corporation for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.

Kitty Prodonovich
Chair

David Eaton
Small Business Commissioner
19 August 2015
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Key performance indicators
The SBDC operates under the broad high level government strategic goal “to responsibly manage the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of
services, encourage economic activity and reduce regulatory burdens on the private sector”.
To meet this goal, the SBDC’s mission is “to deliver and facilitate the provision of relevant, practical support to small businesses and foster the development of policy
conducive to the growth of a thriving small business sector”.
The SBDC’s desired outcome and services that link with this government goal are shown in the table below.
Government goal

Desired outcome

Services

Financial and economic responsibility:
Responsibly managing the State’s finances through
the efficient and effective delivery of services,
encouraging economic activity and reducing
regulatory burdens on the private sector.

Development of new and existing small business in
Western Australia.

Information, guidance, referral and business
development services.

In 2014-15, the SBDC achieved this desired outcome
through:
• The provision of specialised information,
referral and business facilitation services for the
effective development of enterprises in Western
Australia. This included access to justice for small
businesses through the Alternative Dispute
Resolution (ADR) service.

Effectiveness indicator
The effectiveness of the SBDC in meeting its desired
outcome is measured by client surveys of the
following key stakeholder groups:
• small business owners – those already operating
their own business; and
• small business starters – those planning or
contemplating operating a business in the future.

The following effectiveness and efficiency
indicators have been developed to measure SBDC’s
performance.

Client opinions of the services provided by the
SBDC
The SBDC provides a range of small business services
to those in business as well as those planning on
starting or buying a business. (Refer to the Report on
Operations for details of these services.) The SBDC
also provides core business facilitation services across
the State through the provision of funding
for the network of Small Business Centres (SBC).
The effectiveness of small business services is
measured by surveys of those clients who have
contacted the SBDC or SBC during 2014-15.
The effectiveness indicator used to measure the
SBDC’s performance is subject to regular review, and,
where necessary is refined to reflect the services
delivered to key client groups.
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High customer satisfaction with services has been
maintained over several years with the effectiveness
indicator measured in 2014-15 showing no
statistically significant shifts at the 95% confidence
level in comparison with the previous four years.

3 The performance evaluation for 2014-15 where clients were contacted by telephone was undertaken by Advantage Communications and Marketing. Telephone
surveys were undertaken with random selections of clients who had directly sought information and guidance during 2014-15. 711 client surveys were completed to
give a maximum standard error ratio of + / – 3.6% at the 95% confidence level. Overall, 79% of respondents contacted agreed to participate in the survey. The valid
sample for each service area was as follows:

Usefulness of the information/guidance provided
100
90
80
% of client responses

Usefulness of the information or guidance
provided
All clients surveyed were asked – “How would you rate
the usefulness of the information/guidance provided
to you?” 91 per cent of survey participants rated the
information/guidance provided as very or somewhat
useful in 2014-15. Specifically, 62 per cent indicated
that it was very useful while 29 per cent rated it as
somewhat useful. Only 7 per cent of respondents
felt the information or guidance was not useful.
The target for 2014-15 was 93 per cent.

The measure reported below is based on two
surveys conducted during 2014-15 of random
samples of SBDC and SBC clients. The surveys have
been carried out by an independent market research
company to ensure maximum objectivity3.

70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Summary of clients surveyed as part of SBDC’s 2014-15 performance evaluation.
Business operators
2012 – 13

2013 – 14

Business starters

2014 – 15

2012 – 13

2013 – 14

0

Total sample
2014 – 15

2012 – 13

2013 – 14

2014 – 15

Clients – Direct advice
Small Business Services
Business Information Centre

52

196

181

197

65

83

63

261

264

260

30

30

68

170

173

133

200

203

201

Small Business Centres

138

149

142

112

101

108

250

250

250

Total

364

360

407

347

357

304

711

717

711
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2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
Very or somewhat
useful

Not useful

Neither or
can't say
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Efficiency indicators
Efficiency indicators relate to the level of resource inputs required to produce the output (information, guidance, referral and business development services).
Four efficiency indicators are measured. The results for each indicator together with the target for 2014-15 and comparatives from the previous four years are set out below:
Efficiency indicators

2014-15
target

2014-15 actual

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

Cost for direct client contacts
Number of direct client contacts4

$25.12

$7,066,617
367,379

$19.24

$23.36

$28.71

$32.56

$34.20

Cost of indirect client contacts
Number of indirect client contacts5

$3.01

$243,954
100,134

$2.44

$2.65

$2.64

$3.28

$ 3.22

$113.04

$4,968,914
41,616

$119.40

$107.11

$95.62

$96.20

$92.00

$1,270,455

$1,070,579

$1,487,976

$1,292,736

Cost of SBC program
Number of SBC client contacts6
Policy Advice7

$1,245,769

$1,182,935

The target for 2014-15 is as published in the 2014-15 Budget Statements (Budget Paper No 2 Volume 2) Page 765.
4 Direct client contacts have contacted the SBDC for guidance or information either by a personal visit, by telephone, have attended an SBDC workshop, downloaded a licence pack from the Business Licence Finder, or have visited SBDC websites for four
minutes or more. The total number of direct client contacts in 2014-15 is 367,379 compared to 310,419 in 2013-14. The cost per direct client contact is lower than the 2013-14 result and the 2014-15 target due to a significant increase in the number of client
contacts, particularly those visiting the SBDC websites (up by 20%).
5 Indirect client contacts are exposed to a range of advisory, information, referral and business services that would impact on their growth and business development. It includes those that have attended Expos, Forums or Award Functions which SBDC has
organised, has been the major sponsor where the focus has been on business development, or where an SBDC representative has given an address on small business matters. Indirect client contacts also include website visits of between two and four
minutes. The reduction in the cost of indirect client contacts against the result achieved in 2013-14 and the target for 2014-15 is due to an increase in the number of indirect clients, particularly website visitors (9% increase).
6 SBC client contacts. A total of 41,616 client assists were recorded compared to 47,655 in 2013-14. The increase in cost per SBC client contact against the 2014-15 target and the 2013-14 result is due largely to an overall reduction in client contacts as the SBC
program transitioned to the new Business Local service which commences operation on July 1, 2015.
7 Policy advice includes policy and regulatory submissions, industry liaison, small business sector advocacy, investigative research and ministerial correspondence. The cost of policy advice includes salaries and related staffing costs and all other direct costs
associated with the Policy and Advocacy section of the SBDC, together with a notional allocation of corporate overheads. There was a minor reduction in the cost of policy advice against the 2013-14 result and the 2014-15 target due mainly to vacant
positions and staff leave.
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Disclosures and legal compliance
Certification of financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
The accompanying financial statements of the Small Business Development Corporation have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the
Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 and the
financial position as at 30 June 2015.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

KITTY PRODONOVICH
CHAIR
19 August 2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Communications expense
Maintenance expense
Grants and subsidies
Cost of sales
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
User charges and fees
Sales
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Service appropriation
Services received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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6
7
8

9
10
11

12
10
13
14

2015
$

2014
$

6,086,808
3,086,905
156,611
109,772
47,504
3,773,576
0
201,244
13,462,420

6,045,378
3,424,630
122,888
120,755
58,914
3,681,415
5,113
416,745
13,875,838

290,841
0
43,269
36,675
370,785
370,785
13,091,635

251,914
10,579
54,244
56,502
373,239
373,239
13,502,599

13,027,000
184,327
664,000
13,875,327
783,692
783,692

11,645,000
183,210
0
11,828,210
(1,674,389)
(1,674,389)

15

CONTENTS

OVERVIEW
OF AGENCY

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

AGENCY
PERFORMANCE

DISCLOSURES
AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT
ISSUES IMPACTING
THE AGENCY

APPENDIX

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015
Note

2015

2014

$

$

16,28
17,28
18
19
20

1,932,359
56,422
208,482
60,000
231,907
2,489,170

1,157,172
102,196
142,895
60,000
121,234
1,583,497

19
21
22

389,000
190,573
69,222
648,795
3,137,965

354,000
78,478
157,175
589,653
2,173,150

24
25
26

263,460
1,346,304
70,000
1,679,764

291,861
1,276,521
0
1,568,382

25

224,508
224,508
1,904,272
1,233,693

214,767
214,767
1,783,149
390,001

1,238,885
(5,192)
1,233,693

1,178,885
(788,884)
390,001

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services
Furniture, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Contributed equity
Accumulated (deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note

Total
equity

$

Accumulated
surplus/
(deficit)
$

1,118,885

885,505

2,004,390

0

(1,674,389)

(1,674,389)

Capital appropriations

60,000

0

60,000

Balance at 30 June 2014

1,178,885

(788,884)

390,001

Balance at 1 July 2014

1,178,885

(788,884)

390,001

0

783,692

783,692

Capital appropriations

60,000

0

60,000

Balance at 30 June 2015

1,238,885

Balance at 1 July 2013
Total comprehensive income for the period

27

Contributed
equity

$

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note

2015
$

2014
$

12,932,000
60,000
60,000
664,000
13,716,000

11,550,000
60,000
60,000
0
11,670,000

(5,932,765)
(3,042,670)
(107,081)
(38,340)
(3,772,431)
(697,373)
(316,059)

(5,980,501)
(3,362,991)
(125,349)
(78,178)
(3,745,174)
(727,485)
(436,188)

28

0
290,841
41,658
9,713
669,386
89,287
(12,805,834)

10,686
251,914
64,669
10,797
746,923
47,010
(13,323,867)

28

(180,753)
(180,753)
729,413
1,259,368
1,988,781

(30,000)
(30,000)
(1,683,867)
2,943,235
1,259,368

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Capital appropriation
Holding account drawdown
Royalties for Regions Fund
Net cash provided by State Government
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Communication expense
Maintenance expense
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
Other payments
Receipts
Sale of goods and services
User charges and fees
Interest received
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Corporation’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting
Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The Corporation has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

Early adoption of standards
The Corporation cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Corporation for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2015.

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General statement
The Corporation is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements
of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to
vary application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention and are presented in Australian dollars.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting
policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises the Corporation only.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be
recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector
Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.
The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers
are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.

(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
Service appropriations
Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Corporation gains control of the appropriated funds. The Corporation gains control of
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Corporation obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Corporation obtains control over the funds. The Corporation obtains control of the funds at
the time the funds are deposited into the Corporation’s bank account.
Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. This includes gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Furniture, plant and equipment
Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of furniture, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of
furniture, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of
similar items which are significant in total).
Initial recognition and measurement
Furniture, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. For items of furniture, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date
of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the historical cost model is used for the measurement of all items of furniture, plant and equipment where they are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic
benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful life for each class of depreciable asset are:
Computing equipment – 3 to 4 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment – 5 years

(g) Intangible assets
Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Cost incurred below the threshold
is immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.
All intangible assets controlled by the Corporation have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:
Software – 3 to 4 years
Development costs – 3 to 4 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Intangible assets (continued)
Computer Software
Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.
Development Costs
Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the future economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely
to exceed $10,000. Other development costs are expensed as incurred.

(h) Impairment of assets
Furniture, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and
an impairment loss is recognised. As the Corporation is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant
change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the
asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there
is any indication of impairment.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference
to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

(i) Leases
The Corporation holds operating lease arrangements for the rent of the motor vehicles. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the
pattern of benefits derived from the leased vehicles. No finance lease is held by the Corporation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Financial instruments
In addition to cash, the Corporation has two categories of financial instrument:
– Receivables; and
– Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:
Financial Assets
– Cash and cash equivalents
– Restricted cash and cash equivalents
– Receivables
– Amounts receivable for services
Financial Liabilities
– Payables
– Other current liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required
as the effect of discounting is not material.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
(l) Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries (see note 24 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year
end. The Corporation considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value.
(m) Amounts receivable for services (holding account)
The Corporation receives income from the State Government partly in cash and partly as an asset (holding account receivable). The accrued amount appropriated is accessible on the
emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset replacement.

63

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

CONTENTS

OVERVIEW
OF AGENCY

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

AGENCY
PERFORMANCE

DISCLOSURES
AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT
ISSUES IMPACTING
THE AGENCY

APPENDIX

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) Receivables
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis
and any receivables identified as uncollectable are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective
evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

(o) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Corporation becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is
equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days.
(p) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Provisions – employee benefits
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period. An actuarial assessment of annual leave and long service
leave had been undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Limited at 30 June 2015 using the present value of expected future payments.
Annual leave
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore considered to be ‘other long term employee benefits’. The
annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at
the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Corporation does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.
Long service leave
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore recognised and measured at the present value of
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Provisions (continued)
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Corporation does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Corporation has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Sick leave
Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is probable that sick leave paid in the future will be greater than the entitlement that will accrue in the future.
Past history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely
that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for this leave as it is taken.
Deferred leave
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to self-fund an additional 12 months leave in the fifth year of the agreement.
The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as
a current provision as employees can leave the scheme at their discretion at any time.
Purchased leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to self-fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. The
provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with
legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to commencement and implementation dates.
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined
benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing
members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Corporation makes contributions to GESB or other fund
providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation
schemes extinguish the Corporation’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the
concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Corporation to GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Provisions (continued)
The Corporation has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members
who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Corporation to the GESB.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.
Provisions – other
Employment on-costs
Employment on-costs, including payroll tax and workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the
employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Corporation’s ‘Employee benefits
expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.

(q) Superannuation expense
Superannuation expense is recognised in the profit or loss of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions),
the WSS, the GESBS or other superannuation funds.
(r) Services received free of charge or for nominal cost
Services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Corporation would otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of those services that can
be reliably measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.
Services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(s) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.

Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The Corporation evaluates these judgements regularly.

Operating lease commitment
The Corporation has entered into a number of operating lease arrangements and has determined that the lessors retain substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Accordingly, these leases have been classified as operating leases.
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Note 4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Corporation’s annual leave and long service leave provisions include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee
retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the annual leave and long service leave
provisions.

Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Corporation has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective, or adopted, for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 that impacted on
the Corporation.
Int 21

Levies
This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the
Corporation at reporting date.

AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Small Business Development Corporation as it does not impact accounting for related bodies and
the Corporation has no interests in other entities.

AASB 11

Joint Arrangements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that
exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.
There is no financial impact for the Small Business Development Corporation as the new standard continues to require the recognition of the Corporation’s share of
assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint operation.

AASB 12

67

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in
Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. There is no financial impact.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard (continued)

68

AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier
standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate financial statements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Small Business Development Corporation as it does not hold investments in associates and joint
ventures.

AASB 1031

Materiality
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in
other Australian pronouncements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 1055

Budgetary Reporting
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector.
The Corporation will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though
there is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132,
133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]
This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. There is no financial impact for the Small Business Development Corporation.

AASB 2012-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132]
This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. There is
no financial impact.

AASB 2013-3

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial impact.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard (continued)
AASB 2013-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139]
This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated
from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations. The Small Business Development Corporation does not routinely enter
into derivatives or hedges, therefore there is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049]
The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial
returns are not a key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results from the adoption of the
amended AASB 10.

AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments
Part B of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. It has no financial impact.

AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part A of this Standard consists primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and has no financial impact for the Corporation.
Part B of this Standard has no financial impact as the Corporation contributes to schemes that are either defined contribution plans, or deemed to be defined
contribution plans.
Part C of this Standard has no financial impact as it removes references to AASB 1031 Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Corporation cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements. Consequently, the Corporation has not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Corporation.
Where applicable, the Corporation plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
AASB 9

Financial Instruments
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting
treatments.

1 Jan 2018

The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9 and AASB
2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. The Corporation has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This Standard establishes the principles that the Corporation shall apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Corporation has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2017

AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9
in December 2010.

1 Jan 2018

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018. The Corporation
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2013-9
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Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments.
Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017. The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently
deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The Corporation has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative (continued)
Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
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AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other Standards. It has not yet been assessed by
the Corporation to determine the application or potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015

AASB 2014-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 11]
The Corporation establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in Joint Operations.
Therefore, there is no financial impact on application of the Standard.

1 Jan 2016

AASB 2014-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138]
The adoption of this Standard has no financial impact for the Small Business Development Corporation as depreciation and amortisation is
not determined by reference to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future economic benefits.

1 Jan 2016

AASB 2014-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the
issuance of AASB 15. The Corporation has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2017

AASB 2014-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the
issuance of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Corporation has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 2014-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB
9 (December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)]
This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010),
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. The Corporation has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015

AASB 2014-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128]
This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 and AASB 128, to allow entities to use the equity method of
accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. The Corporation has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2016
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative (continued)
Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
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AASB 2014-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
[AASB 10 & 128]
This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10 and those in AASB 128
(August 2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The Corporation has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2016

AASB 2015-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012–2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3,
5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140]
These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle in
September 2014, and editorial corrections. The Corporation has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2016

AASB 2015-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049]
This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the disclosure requirements in AASB 101. Specifically, the Standard
proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns expressed about existing presentation and disclosure requirements
and to ensure entities are able to use judgement when applying a Standard in determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2016

AASB 2015-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality
This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing that
Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2015

AASB 2015-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124
& 1049]
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by not-for-profit public sector entities. Implementation guidance is
included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2016
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2015
$

2014
$

5,523,994
562,814
6,086,808

5,483,259
562,119
6,045,378

1,083,774
54,772
75,352
784,914
81,217
256,495
81,914
668,467
3,086,905

1,063,814
156,749
81,348
1,255,691
215,326
324,401
175,585
151,716
3,424,630

42,114
26,544
68,658

42,961
0
42,961

87,953
87,953
156,611

79,927
79,927
122,888

Note 6. Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a)
Superannuation – defined contribution plans (b)
(a) Includes fringe benefit tax, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESBS and other eligible funds.
Employment on-costs expenses such as payroll tax, workers’ compensation insurance and other employee related expenses are included at note 11
‘Other expenses’. Employment on-costs liability is included at note 25 ‘Provisions’.

Note 7. Supplies and services
Premises – accommodation expenses
Media, advertising and promotions
Travel and accommodation
Professional services
Sponsorships
Other services
Consumable supplies
Royalties for Region Fund payments

Note 8. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Computing equipment
Furniture, fittings and equipment
Total depreciation
Amortisation
Intangible assets – software
Total amortisation
Total depreciation and amortisation
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2015
$

2014
$

3,773,576
3,773,576

3,681,415
3,681,415

0

10,579

0
0
0
0
0
0

(9,507)
4,394
(5,113)
0
(5,113)
5,466

136,773
19,986
42,985
0
1,500
201,244

288,532
85,812
41,378
1,023
0
416,745

Note 9. Grants and subsidies
Small Business Centres – Operational grants

Note 10. Trading profit
Sales
Cost of sales:
Opening inventory
Purchases
Closing inventory
Cost of Goods Sold
Trading profit

Note 11. Other expenses
Employment on-costs (a)
Other employee related expenses (b)
Audit fees (c)
Write off – obsolete inventory
Write off – bad debt

(a) 	Includes payroll tax and workers’ compensation insurance. The on-costs liabilities associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liabilities are included at note 25
‘Provisions’. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
(b) 	Includes staff recruitment, staff training and staff amenities.
(c) See also note 29 ‘Remuneration of auditors’.
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2015
$

2014
$

45,682
236,750
8,409
290,841

35,946
209,150
6,818
251,914

43,269
43,269

54,244
54,244

20,000
16,675
36,675

11,640
44,862
56,502

13,027,000

11,645,000

10,109
174,218
184,327

15,110
168,100
183,210

664,000
13,875,327

0
11,828,210

Note 12. User charges and fees
Workshop income
Business Migration visa application fees
Fees for mediation services

Note 13. Interest Revenue
Bank interest income

Note 14. Other revenue
Sponsorships
Miscellaneous

Note 15. Income from State Government
Appropriation received during the period:
Service appropriation (a)
Services received free of charge from other State Government agencies
during the period:
Department of the Attorney General
Department of Finance
Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional Community Services Account (b)

(a) 	Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account)
comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability during the year.
(b) This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. The recurrent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas.
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2015
$

2014
$

Note 16. Cash and cash equivalents
Bank account
Cash investments – investment with Department of Treasury
Cash on hand

1,432,109
500,000
250
1,932,359

656,622
500,000
550
1,157,172

31,797
24,625
56,422

36,158
66,038
102,196

70,140
125,901
12,441
208,482

22,220
109,844
10,831
142,895

60,000
389,000
449,000

60,000
354,000
414,000

231,907
231,907

121,234
121,234

Note 17. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Funding from Department of Agriculture and Food for the Drought Relief program
Royalties for Regions Fund (a)
(a) Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas.

Note 18. Receivables
Trade and other debtors
Net GST recoverable
Accrued interest
The Corporation does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.

Note 19. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)
Current
Non-current
Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave
liability.

Note 20. Other current assets
Prepayments
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2015
$

2014
$

Note 21. Furniture, plant and equipment

77

Computing equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation

220,402
(136,005)
84,397

295,457
(216,979)
78,478

Furniture, fittings and equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation

132,720
(26,544)
106,176
190,573

0
0
0
78,478

Reconciliations:
Computing Equipment
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

78,478
48,033
(42,114)
84,397

121,439
0
(42,961)
78,478

Furniture, fittings and equipment
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

0
132,720
(26,544)
106,176

0
0
0
0
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2015
$

2014
$

Note 22. Intangible assets
Computer software at cost
Accumulated amortisation

452,692
(383,470)
69,222

474,738
(317,563)
157,175

Development costs at cost
Accumulated amortisation

0
0
0
69,222

49,367
(49,367)
0
157,175

157,175
0
(87,953)
69,222

207,102
30,000
(79,927)
157,175

458
105,751
157,251
263,460

1,763
142,342
147,756
291,861

Reconciliations:
Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Amortisation expense
Carrying amount at end of period

Note 23. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment to furniture, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 30 June 2015.
The Corporation held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period
there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
All surplus assets at 30 June 2015 have been written-off.

Note 24. Payables
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued salaries
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2015
$

2014
$

380,078
(4,672)
939,741
23,940
1,339,087

373,769
16,401
784,921
39,882
1,214,973

7,217
7,217
1,346,304

61,548
61,548
1,276,521

223,281
223,281

203,949
203,949

1,227
1,227
224,508

10,818
10,818
214,767

323,884
56,194
380,078

307,233
66,536
373,769

416,701
746,321
1,163,022

278,332
710,538
988,870

Note 25. Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a)
Purchased leave
Long service leave (b)
Deferred salary scheme (c)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)

(a) 	Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
(b) 	Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

79

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

CONTENTS

OVERVIEW
OF AGENCY

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

AGENCY
PERFORMANCE

DISCLOSURES
AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT
ISSUES IMPACTING
THE AGENCY

APPENDIX

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
2015
$

2014
$

23,940
23,940

39,882
39,882

72,366
(63,922)
8,444

73,530
(1,164)
72,366

70,000
70,000

0
0

Note 25. Provisions (continued)
(c) 	Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. Actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period

(d) 	The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including payroll tax and workers’
compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of
the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 11 ‘Other expenses’.
Movements in other provisions
Movements in other provision during the period, other than employee benefits, is set out below:
Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period
(Reversals of) provisions recognised
Carrying amount at end of period

Note 26. Other Current Liabilities
Unearned revenue

Funding from the Department of Regional Development for the delivery of restricted ancillary services to support the proposed External Adviser (Broker) role. The proposed role is
being planned for implementation for two years from 2015/16 as part of the $400,000 Procurement Reform Package element of the $2.3 million Aboriginal Governance and Leadership
Development Program (AGLDP).
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2015
$

2014
$

1,178,885

1,118,885

60,000
60,000

60,000
60,000

1,238,885

1,178,885

Note 27. Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Corporation on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest
in the net assets of the Corporation.
Contributed equity
Balance at start of period
Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation
Total contributions by owners
Balance at end of period
Accumulated (deficit)
Balance at start of period
Result for the period
Balance at end of period
Total equity at end of period

(788,884)
783,692
(5,192)

885,505
(1,674,389)
(788,884)

1,233,693

390,001

1,932,359
56,422
1,988,781

1,157,172
102,196
1,259,368

Note 28. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the
Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 16 ‘Cash and cash equivalents’)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 17 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’)
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2015
$

2014
$

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows used in operating activities
Net cost of services

(13,091,635)

(13,502,599)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 ‘Depreciation and amortisation expense’)
Services received free of charge (note 15 ‘Income from State Government’)

156,611
184,327

122,888
183,210

Note 28. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables
(Increase) in other current assets
Decrease in inventories
(Decrease) in payables
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions
Increase in other current liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

(65,587)
(110,673)
0
(28,401)
79,524
70,000
(12,805,834)

91,284
(24,165)
9,507
(185,907)
(18,085)
0
(13,323,867)

Note 29. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
– Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators

27,400
27,400

26,700
26,700

The amounts disclosed above differ from the amounts recognised in note 11 ‘Other expenses’ and represents the totals of interim and final audit fees for the current year financial
statement.
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Note 30. Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers
Remuneration of members of the accountable authority
The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for
the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
$0
– $10,000
$10,001 – $20,000
$20,001 – $30,000

Total remuneration of members of the accountable authority

2015
6
1
1

2014
6
0
1

$
83,917

$
65,464

2015
0
1
1
1
0
1

2014
1
1
1
0
1
0

$
756,803
51,130
18,261
826,194

$
725,626
13,118
17,258
756,002

Total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Corporation in respect of members of the accountable authority.
Remuneration of senior officers
The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority, whose total fees, salaries,
superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
$150,001
$160,001
$170,001
$190,001
$260,001
$290,001

– $160,000
– $170,000
– $180,000
– $200,000
– $270,000
– $300,000

Base remuneration and superannuation
Annual leave and long service leave accruals
Other benefits
Total remuneration of senior officers
Total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Corporation in respect of senior officers other than senior officers
reported as members of the accountable authority.
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2015
$

2014
$

727,357
2,831,081
3,436,649
6,995,087

698,657
2,741,812
4,007,379
7,447,848

3,581,848
7,254,000
10,835,848

62,250
0
62,250

Note 31. Affiliated Bodies
Small Business Centres
During the year $3,773,576 was paid out to Small Business Centres by way of operational grants. The Centres are separately incorporated entities
located in city and country areas to assist small businesses to expand or develop new business ideas.

Note 32. Commitments
The commitments below are exclusive of GST.
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Commitments for minimum lease payments for motor vehicles and office accomodation are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Other expenditure commitments
Other expenditure commitments, being provision of venue and meals for the 2015 Western Australian Regional Small Business Awards and advisory
services for the Business Local WA Program contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Note 33. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
No contingent liabilities and contingent assets exist as at 30 June 2015.
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Note 34. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial instruments held by the Corporation are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables. The Corporation has limited exposure to
financial risks. The Corporation’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Corporation’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Corporation.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets as shown in
the table at note 34(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 18 ‘Receivables’.
Credit risk associated with the Corporation’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other than
government, the Corporation trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Corporation has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Corporation’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.
At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Corporation is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course
of business.
The Corporation has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available
to meet its commitments.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Corporation’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Corporation does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. The Corporation has no borrowings and its exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relate primarily to cash and cash equivalents which are interest bearing as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table at note 34(c) ‘Financial instrument
disclosures’.
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Note 34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (i)
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
(i) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Note 34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk
The following table discloses the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the
end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired
financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Corporation.
The Corporation does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.
Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired
Not past
Carrying
due and not
Up to 1
3 months to
amount
impaired
month
1-3 months
1 year
$
$
$
$
$

2015
Cash at bank
Cash investments
Cash on hand
Restricted cash at bank
Receivables (a)
Amount receivable for services

2014
Cash at bank
Cash investments
Cash on hand
Restricted cash at bank
Receivables (a)
Amount receivable for services

1,432,109
500,000
250
56,422
82,581
449,000
2,520,362

1,432,109
500,000
250
56,422
82,581
449,000
2,520,362

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

656,622
500,000
550
102,196
33,051
414,000
1,706,419

656,622
500,000
550
102,196
31,551
414,000
1,704,919

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
1,500
0
1,500

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Note 34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)
Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Corporation’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes
interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest rate exposure
Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
%
2015
Financial Assets
Cash at bank
Cash investments
Cash on hand
Restricted cash at bank
Receivables (a)
Amount receivable for services

Financial Liabilities
Payables

88

2.70
2.70
2.70

Maturity dates

Carrying
amount

Variable
interest
rate

Noninterest
bearing

Nominal
amount

Up to
1 month

3 months to
1 year

1-5
years

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

1,432,109
500,000
250
56,422
82,581
449,000
2,520,362

1,432,109
500,000
0
56,422
0
0
1,988,531

0
0
250
0
82,581
449,000
531,831

1,432,109
500,000
250
56,422
82,581
449,000
2,520,362

1,432,109
500,000
250
56,422
82,581
0
2,071,362

0
0
0
0
0
60,000
60,000

0
0
0
0
0
389,000
389,000

263,460
263,460

0
0

263,460
263,460

263,460
263,460

263,460
263,460

0
0

0
0
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Note 34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)
Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
%
2014
Financial Assets
Cash at bank
Cash investments
Cash on hand
Restricted cash at bank
Receivables (a)
Amount receivable for services

Financial Liabilities
Payables

2.82
2.82
2.82

Carrying
amount

Interest rate exposure
Variable
Noninterest
interest
rate
bearing

$

$

$

Up to
1 month

Maturity dates
3 months to
1 year

1-5
years

$

$

$

$

656,622
500,000
550
102,196
33,051
414,000
1,706,419

656,622
500,000
0
102,196
0
0
1,258,818

0
0
550
0
33,051
414,000
447,601

656,622
500,000
550
102,196
33,051
414,000
1,706,419

656,622
500,000
550
102,196
33,051
0
1,292,419

0
0
0
0
0
60,000
60,000

0
0
0
0
0
354,000
354,000

291,861
291,861

0
0

291,861
291,861

291,861
291,861

291,861
291,861

0
0

0
0

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Note 34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Corporation’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the surplus for the
period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.
-100 basis points

2015

Carrying
amount
$

+100 basis points

Surplus
$

Equity
$

Surplus
$

Equity
$

1,432,109

(14,321)

(14,321)

14,321

14,321

500,000

(5,000)

(5,000)

5,000

5,000

Financial Assets
Cash at bank
Cash investments
Restricted cash at bank

56,422

(564)

(564)

564

564

(19,885)

(19,885)

19,885

19,885

2014
Financial Assets
Cash at bank

656,622

(6,566)

(6,566)

6,566

6,566

Cash investments

500,000

(5,000)

(5,000)

5,000

5,000

Restricted cash at bank

102,196

(1,022)

(1,022)

1,022

1,022

(12,588)

(12,588)

12,588

12,588

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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Note 35. Explanatory Statement
Significant variances between estimates and actual results for 2015 and between the actual results for 2015 and 2014 are shown below. Major variances are considered to be those
greater than 10% or $10 million.

Variance
Note
Statement of Comprehensive Income
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Communications expense
Maintenance expense
Grants and subsidies
Cost of sales
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
User charges and fees
Sales
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
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1,A
2
3,B
4,C
5,D

6,E
7,F
8,G
9,H

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$

Variance
between
actual
results for
2015
and 2014
$

Original
Budget
2015
$

Actual
2015
$

Actual
2014
$

6,130,000
3,324,000
80,000
145,000
57,000
3,804,000
20,000
435,000
13,995,000

6,086,808
3,086,905
156,611
109,772
47,504
3,773,576
0
201,244
13,462,420

6,045,378
3,424,630
122,888
120,755
58,914
3,681,415
5,113
416,745
13,875,838

(43,192)
(237,095)
76,611
(35,228)
(9,496)
(30,424)
(20,000)
(233,756)
(532,580)

41,430
(337,725)
33,723
(10,983)
(11,410)
92,161
(5,113)
(215,501)
(413,418)

245,000
35,000
30,000
0
310,000

290,841
0
43,269
36,675
370,785

251,914
10,579
54,244
56,502
373,239

45,841
(35,000)
13,269
36,675
60,785

38,927
(10,579)
(10,975)
(19,827)
(2,454)

310,000
13,685,000

370,785
13,091,635

373,239
13,502,599

60,785
(593,365)

(2,454)
(410,964)
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Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)

Variance
Note
Income from State Government
Service appropriation
Services received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

10,I
11
12,J

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
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Statement of Financial Position
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

13,K
14,L
15
16,M

Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services
Furniture, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

18,O
19,P
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17,N

Original
Budget
2015
$

Actual
2015
$

Actual
2014
$

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$

Variance
between
actual
results for
2015
and 2014
$

11,791,000
0
1,710,000
13,501,000
(184,000)

13,027,000
184,327
664,000
13,875,327
783,692

11,645,000
183,210
0
11,828,210
(1,674,389)

1,236,000
184,327
(1,046,000)
374,327
967,692

1,382,000
1,117
664,000
2,047,117
2,458,081

(184,000)

783,692

(1,674,389)

967,692

2,458,081

2,179,000
36,000
10,000
237,000
60,000
72,000
2,594,000

1,932,359
56,422
0
208,482
60,000
231,907
2,489,170

1,157,172
102,196
0
142,895
60,000
121,234
1,583,497

(246,641)
20,422
(10,000)
(28,518)
0
159,907
(104,830)

775,187
(45,774)
0
65,587
0
110,673
905,673

389,000
261,000
227,000
877,000
3,471,000

389,000
190,573
69,222
648,795
3,137,965

354,000
78,478
157,175
589,653
2,173,150

0
(70,427)
(157,778)
(228,205)
(333,035)

35,000
112,095
(87,953)
59,142
964,815
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Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)
Variance
between
actual
results for
2015
and 2014
$

Original
Budget
2015
$

Actual
2015
$

Actual
2014
$

20
21
22,Q

428,000
1,086,000
0
1,514,000

263,460
1,346,304
70,000
1,679,764

291,861
1,276,521
0
1,568,382

(164,540)
260,304
70,000
165,764

(28,401)
69,783
70,000
111,382

23

305,000
305,000
1,819,000

224,508
224,508
1,904,272

214,767
214,767
1,783,149

(80,492)
(80,492)
85,272

9,741
9,741
121,123

NET ASSETS

1,652,000

1,233,693

390,001

(418,307)

843,692

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

1,239,000
413,000
1,652,000

1,238,885
(5,192)
1,233,693

1,178,885
(788,884)
390,001

(115)
(418,192)
(418,307)

60,000
783,692
843,692

11,696,000
60,000
60,000
1,710,000
13,526,000

12,932,000
60,000
60,000
664,000
13,716,000

11,550,000
60,000
60,000
0
11,670,000

1,236,000
0
0
(1,046,000)
190,000

1,382,000
0
0
664,000
2,046,000

Variance
Note
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Statement of Cash Flows
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Capital appropriation
Holding account drawdown
Royalties for Regions Fund
Net cash provided by State Government
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Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$
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Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)

Receipts
Sale of goods and services
User charges and fees
Interest received
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD
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Variance
between
actual
results for
2015
and 2014
$

Original
Budget
2015
$

Actual
2015
$

Actual
2014
$

(6,082,000)
(3,375,000)
(145,000)
(57,000)
(3,804,000)
(620,000)
(435,000)

(5,932,765)
(3,042,670)
(107,081)
(38,340)
(3,772,431)
(697,373)
(316,059)

(5,980,501)
(3,362,991)
(125,349)
(78,178)
(3,745,174)
(727,485)
(436,188)

149,235
332,330
37,919
18,660
31,569
(77,373)
118,941

47,736
320,321
18,268
39,838
(27,257)
30,112
120,129

30,W
31,X
32,Y
33
34,Z
35,AA

35,000
245,000
30,000
60,000
560,000
0
(13,588,000)

0
290,841
41,658
9,713
669,386
89,287
(12,805,834)

10,686
251,914
64,669
10,797
746,923
47,010
(13,323,867)

(35,000)
45,841
11,658
(50,287)
109,386
89,287
782,166

(10,686)
38,927
(23,011)
(1,084)
(77,537)
42,277
518,033

36,AB

(126,000)

(180,753)

(30,000)

(54,753)

(150,753)

(126,000)
(188,000)
2,403,000
2,215,000

(180,753)
729,413
1,259,368
1,988,781

(30,000)
(1,683,867)
2,943,235
1,259,368

(54,753)
917,413
(1,143,632)
(226,219)

(150,753)
2,413,280
(1,683,867)
729,413

Variance
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Communication expense
Maintenance expense
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
Other payments

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$

26,T
27,U
28
29,V
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)
Major Variance Narratives (Controlled Operations)
Variances between estimate and actual
1) Depreciation and amortisation expense exceeded estimates by $0.08 million (95.8%) due to higher than expected depreciation expense for the Business Information Centre
refurbishment and purchase of new computer equipment.
2) Communications expense below estimates by $0.04 million (24.3%) due to lower than expected costs for mail services and computer communications.
3) Maintenance expense below estimates by $0.01 million (16.7%). Estimate is based on previous period outturn however less maintainance expense was required in 2014/15.
4) Cost of sales below estimates by $0.02 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014.
5) Other expenses below estimates by $0.23 million (53.7%) mainly due to savings from a payroll tax exemption effective 25th February 2015, plus the write back of payroll tax on leave
provisions previously included as employment on-cost. In addition, there has been a reduction in staff training and recruitment advertising costs.
6) User charges and fees exceeded estimates by $0.05 million (18.7%) due to higher than expected business migration application fees received.
7) Sales below estimates by $0.04 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014.
8) Interest revenue exceeded estimates by $0.01 million (44.2%) due to higher than expected cash balances.
9) Other revenue exceeded estimates by $0.04 million (100%) due to unbudgeted sponsorship and other receipts associated with small business awards programs.
10) Service appropriation exceeded estimates by $1.24 million (10.5%) due to additional funding for services negotiated as part of the 2014/15 Mid Year Review for Business Migration,
Aboriginal Business and the Small Business Centre program.
11) Services received free of charge exceeded estimates by $0.18 million (100%) as no provision was previously included in the Budget Estimates. Service received free of charge relate
to the notional value of services provided by the Department of Finance and the Department of Attorney General for office accomodation and legal advice respectively.
12) Royalties for Regions Fund below estimates by $1.05 million (61.2%) due to deferral of funding for the Regional Buy Local Initiatives and the WA Regional Small Business Awards to
future periods as agreed with the Department of Regional Development.
13) Cash and cash equivalents below estimates by $0.25 million (11.3%) due to a number of prepayments made in June 2015 resulting in a reduction in cash assets.
14) Restricted cash and cash equivalents exceeded estimates by $0.02 million (56.7%) due to unspent funding relating to the Royalties for Regions Regional Buy Local Initiatives Stage 2.
15) Inventories below estimates by $0.01 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014 with the result that inventory is no
longer held.
16) Receivables below estimates by $0.03 million (12.0%) due to lower than expected GST and interest receivables. Offset against this is higher trade debtors for the year.
17) Other current assets exceeded estimates by $0.16 million (222.1%) as a result of an increase in the number and value of prepayments including office accommodation and
Awards Sponsorships.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)
Major Variance Narratives (Controlled Operations) (continued)
18) Furniture, plant and equipment below estimates by $0.07 million (27.0%) due to delays in the purchase of office and computer equipment. Additional depreciation on the Business
Information Centre refurbishment also contributed to a reduction in the overall value of the furniture, plant and equipment asset.
19) Intangible assets below estimates by $0.16 million (69.5%) due to a number of intangible assets being fully written down along with delays in new asset purchases.
20) Payables below estimates by $0.16 million (38.4%) due to lower than expected accrued salaries and expenses incurred.
21) Current provisions exceeded estimates by $0.26 million (24.0%) due to an increase in long service leave provision including salary cost escalation and the transfer from non-current
to current provisions as the leave liabilities fall due within 12 months. This is partially offset by a decrease in provision for payroll tax on-costs as a result of payroll tax exemption
during the year.
22) Other current liabilities exceeded estimates by $0.07 million (100%) due to unearned revenue as a result of funding from the Department of Regional Development for the delivery
of restricted ancillary services to support the external adviser (broker) role from 2015/16.
23) Non-current provisions below estimates by $0.08 million (26.4%) due to the transfer of long service leave provision from non-current to current as the leave liabilities fall due within
12 months. In addition, a reduction in provision for payroll tax on-costs resulted from a payroll tax exemption granted during the year.
24) Service appropriation exceeded estimates by $1.24 million (10.6%) due to additional funding for services negotiated as part of the 2014/15 Mid Year Review for Business Migration,
Aboriginal Business and the Small Business Centre program.
25) Royalties for Regions Fund below estimates by $1.05 million (61.2%) due to deferral of funding for the Regional Buy Local Initiatives and the WA Regional Small Business Awards to
future periods as agreed with the Department of Regional Development.
26) Communication expense below estimates by $0.04 million (26.2%) due to lower than expected costs for mail services and computer communications.
27) Maintenance expense below estimates by $0.02 million (32.7%). Estimate is based on previous period outturn however less maintainance expense was required in 2014/15.
28) GST payments on purchases exceeded estimates by $0.08 million (12.5%) due to higher than expected taxable payments made during the year.
29) Other payments below estimates by $0.12 million (27.3%) mainly due to savings from a payroll tax exemption effective 25th February 2015. In addition, there has been a reduction in
staff training and recruitment advertising costs.
30) Sale of goods and services below estimates by $0.04 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014.
31) User charges and fees exceeded estimates by $0.05million (18.7%) due to higher than expected business migration application fees received.
32) Interest received exceeded estimates by $0.01 million (38.9%) due to higher than expected cash balances.
33) GST receipts on sales below estimates $0.05 million (83.8%) due to lower than expected GST receipts as a result of the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information
Centre from May 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)
Major Variance Narratives (Controlled Operations) (continued)
34) GST receipts from taxation authority exceeded estimates by $0.11 million (19.5%) due to ATO receipts from higher than expected GST payments on purchases during the year.
35) Other receipts exceeded estimates by $0.09 million (100%) due to unbudgeted sponsorship and other receipts associated with small business awards programs, together with
receipts from the Commonwealth Paid Parental Leave scheme.
36) Purchase of non-current physical assets exceeded estimates by $0.05 million (43.5%) due to capital carryovers from 2013/14 to 2014/15.
Variances between actual results for 2015 and 2014
A) Depreciation and amortisation expense increased by $0.03 million (27.4%) due to the Business Information Centre refurbishment undertaken in July 2014.
B) Maintenance expense decreased by $0.01 million (19.4%) due to an overall reduction in software and office equipment repairs and maintenance.
C) Cost of sales decreased by $0.01 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014.
D) Other expenses decreased by $0.22 million (51.7%) mainly due to savings from a payroll tax exemption effective 25th February 2015, plus the write back of payroll tax on leave
provisions previously included as employment on-cost. In addition, there has been a reduction in staff training and recruitment advertising costs.
E) User charges and fees increased by $0.04 million (15.5%) due to higher business migration application fees and workshop admission fees received.
F) Sales decreased by $0.01 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014.
G) Interest revenue decreased by $0.01 million (20.2%) due to reduction in interest rates during the year.
H) Other revenue decreased by $0.02 million (35.1%) due to a payroll tax refund in 2013/14 associated with an overdeclaration of payroll paymemts for prior periods identified in a
recent payroll tax audit.
I)

Service appropriation increased by $1.38 million (11.9%) due to additional funding for services negotiated as part of the 2014/15 Mid Year Review for Business Migration, Aboriginal
Business and the Small Business Centre program, along with general cost escalation.

J)

Royalties for Regions Fund increased by $0.66 million (100%) due to new funding allocated in 2014/15 for the Regional Buy Local Initiatives Stage 2 and the Western Australian
Regional Small Business Awards.

K) Cash and cash equivalents increased by $0.78 million (67.0%) due to additional funding received following the 2014/15 Mid Year Review, some of which remained unspent at year end.
L) Restricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $0.05 million (44.8%) due mainly to a reduction in the amount of unspent funds for the Royalties for Regions Regional Buy Local
Initiatives programs.
M) Receivables increased by $0.07 million (45.9%) due to funding receivable from the Department of Regional Development for the delivery of restricted ancillary services to support
the external adviser (broker) role from 2015/16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 35. Explanatory Statement (continued)
Major Variance Narratives (Controlled Operations) (continued)
N) Other current assets increased by $0.11 million (91.3%) as a result of an increase in the number and value of prepayments including office accommodation and Awards Sponsorships.
O) Furniture, plant and equipment increased by $0.11 million (142.8%) due to the refurbishment of the Business Information Centre and the purchase of two replacement multi
function devices.
P) Intangible asset values decreased by $0.09 million (56.0%) as amortisation reduces the overall written down value of the assets.
Q) Other current liabilities increased by $0.07 million (100%) due to unearned revenue as a result of funding from Department of Regional Development for the delivery of restricted
ancillary services to support the external adviser (broker) role from 2015/16.
R) Service appropriation increased by $1.38 million (12.0%) due to additional funding for services negotiated as part of the 2014/15 Mid Year Review for Business Migration, Aboriginal
Business and the Small Business Centre program, along with general cost escalation.
S) Royalties for Regions Fund increased by $0.66 million (100%) due to new funding allocated in 2014/15 for the Regional Buy Local Initiatives Stage 2 and the Western Australian
Regional Small Business Awards.
T) Communication expense decreased by $0.02 million (14.6%) due to an overall reduction in the cost of mail services and computer communications.
U) Maintenance expense decreased by $0.04 million (51.0%) due to an overall reduction in software and office equipment repairs and maintenance.
V) Other payments decreased by $0.12 million (27.5%) mainly due to savings from a payroll tax exemption effective 25th February 2015. In addition, there has been a reduction in staff
training and recruitment advertising costs.
W) Sale of goods and services decreased by $0.01 million (100%) due to the cessation of publication sales at the Business Information Centre from May 2014.
X) User charges and fees increased by $0.04 million (15.5%) due to higher business migration application fees and workshop admission fees received.
Y) Interest received decreased by $0.02 million (35.6%) due to reduction in interest rates during the year.
Z) GST receipts from taxation authority decreased by $0.08 million (10.4%) due to a reduction in taxable payments on purchases compared to 2013/14.
AA) Other receipts increased by $0.04 million (89.9%) due to an increase in receipts from the Commonwealth Paid Parental Leave scheme.
AB) Purchase of non-current physical assets increased by $0.15 million (502.5%) due to the Business Information Centre refurbishment and purchase of new computer equipment.

Note 36. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
As from 1 July 2015, the Business Local service replaces the Small Business Centre network in providing advice and guidance for owners starting a new enterprise or
developing existing businesses. The service will be overseen by the Corporation and delivered by seven organisations to 12 regions covering the State.
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Disclosures and legal compliance
Other legal requirements
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan outcomes
The SBDC is committed to creating a community
which is accessible and inclusive to help to minimise
the impacts of disability. The agency’s current
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) spans the
period 2012-16.
Outcome 1: People with disabilities have the same
opportunities as other people to access the services
of, and any events organised by, the SBDC.
Outcome 2: People with disabilities have the
same opportunities as other people to access the
buildings and other facilities of the SBDC.
Outcome 3: People with disabilities receive the same
level of information from the SBDC in a format that
will enable them to access information as readily as
other people.
Outcome 4: People with disabilities receive the same
level and quality of service from SBDC staff as other
people.
Outcome 5: People with disabilities have the same
opportunities as other people to make complaints to
the SBDC.
Outcome 6: People with disabilities have the same
opportunities as other people to participate in any
public consultation by the SBDC.
Outcome 7: People with disabilities have the
same opportunities as other people to obtain and
maintain employment with a public authority.
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Note: Outcome 7 is a recent inclusion to the
agency’s DAIP and was communicated to all staff to
ensure recruitment and retention practices provide
equal opportunities for people with a disability.
Some strategies under this new outcome include
allowing extended reading time before an interview
and using smaller recruitment panels where possible.
Strategies that the SBDC delivered during 2014-15
under the other six outcome areas included:
• Continued inclusion of DAIP strategies in business
and strategic planning;
• Continued inclusion in the induction program
so new staff are informed of accessibility
requirements on commencement;
• Improved SBDC website in line with Level AA of
the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines version
2.0 (WCAG 2.0) – a Commonwealth government
standard that ensures information and services
are provided to the public in a non-discriminatory
accessible manner; and
• Encouraging all staff to watch the training video
‘You Can Make a Difference’ that explores the
best ways to serve clients with a disability.
Equal employment opportunity (EEO)
The SBDC continues to meet its obligations under
section 145 (preparation and implementation of
management plans) of the Equal Opportunity Act
1984 by progressing EEO initiatives though an
integrated Workforce and Diversity Management
Plan. Plans are now underway to develop and
implement a separate EEO Management Plan that
will allow a renewed focus on outcomes in this area.
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Initiatives are included to achieve the following three
high-level outcomes relating to equal employment
opportunities:
• The agency values EEO/diversity and the work
environment is free from all forms of harassment.
• The workplace is free from employment practices
that are biased or discriminate unlawfully against
employees or potential employees.
• Employment programs and practices recognise
and include strategies to achieve workforce
diversity.
Initiatives to monitor and improve the workplace
culture through the development of internal values
will continue to be the drivers to meet these high
level outcomes in EEO.
Compliance with public sector standards and
ethical codes
The SBDC has complied with section 31 of the Public
Sector Management Act 1994 in the administration
of the agency’s human resource management
practices relating to public sector standards and
codes of ethics and conduct.
During 2014-15, the SBDC received no breach claims
against public sector standards and no reports of
non-compliance with the WA Code of Ethics or the
agency’s own Code of Conduct.
The SBDC monitors compliance with the standards
through a number of measures and initiatives:
• quality feedback is provided to applicants as part
of all recruitment processes;
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Disclosures and legal compliance
• training is provided to panel members
underpinned by the provision of recruitment
guidelines specific to the SBDC;
• information about public sector standards are
included on the SBDC’s website and covered at
inductions; and
• employees commencing and leaving the SBDC
are surveyed on all aspects of their employment,
including questions relating to staff behaving in
accordance with the Code of Conduct.

During the year, the SBDC continued to maintain
an effective record-keeping training program.
All new staff and contractors received
comprehensive induction training, detailing
policies and procedures, and their record-keeping
responsibilities. Additional training and materials
were available on request, tailored to meet specific
needs if required. The effectiveness of training is
regularly monitored to ensure it meets the needs of
the SBDC and State Records Office.

Training in accountable and ethical decision making
was provided to all staff, working closely with the
Public Sector Commission in the development of the
program.

Advertising expenditure
In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral
Act 1907, set out below are details of expenditure
incurred during 2014-15 in relation to:

Record-keeping plan
The SBDC’s record-keeping plan was originally
approved in April 2010. Legislative changes
resulting in the introduction of the Small Business
Commissioner and alternative dispute resolution
(ADR) service, along with changes to the SBDC’s
strategic focus, necessitated a comprehensive review
of the plan during 2013-14. A revised record-keeping
plan was approved by the State Records Office in
August 2014 and the retention and disposal schedule
DA2014-005 was approved in December 2014.

Market research organisations:

$34,000.51

• Advantage Communications

$19,465.49

• ACIL Allen

$14,535.02

Media advertising:

$13,440.00

• The West Australian Regional
Newspapers Group

$13,440.00

Polling organisation

Nil

Direct mail organisations

Nil

Total expenditure for 2014-15:

Monitoring the efficiency and effectiveness of
record-keeping systems is ongoing and changes
will be made as necessary. This will lead to significant
benefits for the overall management of the
agency’s records.
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$47,440.51

Legislation impacting on activity
In the performance of its functions, the SBDC
complies with the following legislation:
• A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999
(Cth)
• Auditor General Act 2006
• Business Names Act 1962
• Business Names (Commonwealth Powers) Act 2012
• Business Names Registration Act 2011 (Cth)
• Copyright Act 1968 (Cth)
• Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreements Act
1985
• Corporations (Western Australia) Act 1990
• Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
• Criminal Code Act Compilation Act 1913
• Disability Services Act 1993
• Electoral Act 1907
• Electronic Transaction Act 2011
• Equal Opportunity Act 1984
• Evidence Act 1906
• Evidence Act 1995 (Cth)
• Financial Management Act 2006
• Freedom of Information Act 1992
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cth)
• Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth)
• Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Cth)
• Industrial Relations Act 1979
• Legal Deposit Act 2012
• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
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Disclosures and legal compliance
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Pay-roll Tax Act 2002
Pay-roll Tax Assessment Act 2002
Privacy Act 1988 (Cth)
Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
Public Sector Management Act 1994
Small Business Development Corporation Act 1983
Spam Act 2003 (Cth)
State Records Act 2000
State Superannuation Act 2000
State Supply Commission Act 1991
State Trading Concerns Act 1916
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act
1992 (Cth)
• Taxation Administration Act 2003
• Treasurer’s Instructions 804 and 805
• Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act
1981

Government policy requirements
Corruption prevention
The SBDC is committed to the highest level of
integrity, ethics and equity. Corruption prevention
forms part of the agency’s overall risk management
strategy as an important element of internal control.
Staff and Board members are regularly briefed on a
range of statutory and administrative requirements
relating to ethical conduct, including the
requirement to declare conflicts of interest.
A comprehensive induction program, the inclusion
of policies on the SBDC intranet and regular internal
communications also seek to ensure staff are
aware of and understand their responsibilities.
In addition, the majority of staff undertook training
in accountable and ethical decision-making during
the reporting period.

Cth = Commonwealth Acts
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Publications
The SBDC produces a wide range of publications, in
hard copy and electronic format, including:
• Annual reports: Each financial year, the annual
report highlights the agency’s business and
financial activities. Electronic (PDF) copies of
previous reports are available on request.
• Media releases: Releases are sent to a range of
media outlets and key stakeholders on topical
issues relating to the small business sector.
• Promotional publications: Outlining the SBDC’s
services.
• Information leaflets and guides: Providing
advice and support for small business operators.
They are available in hard copy or can be
downloaded from the SBDC website.
• E-news: The SBDC produces a monthly
e-newsletter which provides relevant business
and SBDC updates. It is available free of charge
and subscribers can sign-up online.

CONTENTS

OVERVIEW
OF AGENCY

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

AGENCY
PERFORMANCE

DISCLOSURES
AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT
ISSUES IMPACTING
THE AGENCY

APPENDIX

Significant issues impacting the agency (as reported in the 2015-16 Budget Papers)
• The alternative dispute resolution (ADR) service
provides timely, practical guidance and assistance
to small businesses in dispute with another
business or government agency and, where
appropriate, includes access to a governmentsubsidised mediation service. During the year, the
ADR service was recognised in the Productivity
Commission’s 2014 report into Access to Justice
as a model in providing non-litigious, cheaper
and quicker resolution of small business disputes.
• The Business Migration program is a key initiative
to attract investment to Western Australia.
Business migrants make a significant contribution
to the economy by establishing or buying
businesses, exporting products and services,
and creating jobs. The SBDC provides State
nominations for business migrants in a range
of business and investment visa categories. The
program is forecast to deliver more than $1 billion
in new asset investment into Western Australia
over the forward estimates.
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• Following a comprehensive independent review
of the Small Business Centre program undertaken
during 2013-14, the agency began transitioning
its third party service delivery model into the new
Business Local initiative. Commencing on 1 July
2015, the new model will see suitably qualified
and experienced advisers providing a range
of business services in 12 service delivery areas
across the State (including nine in the regions).
It is expected that the program will support an
increased level of higher quality business startups, stronger foundations for businesses, more
profitable businesses with increased turnover, and
employment opportunities throughout the State.
• The SBDC, by partnering with Royalties for
Regions, broadened its support for small business
in regional areas by assisting them in building
their capacity to take advantage of market
opportunities. The Regional Buy Local program
focussed on helping regional small businesses
to identify and address gaps in their knowledge
and skills, and facilitated opportunities to supply
to major government and resource projects.
In turn, this will help businesses become more
competitive and resilient over the long term,
which will enhance the ongoing viability of
regional communities.

Small Business Development Corporation Annual Report 2014-15

• The SBDC contributes to small business policy
development at all levels of government
through contributing to major policy and
legislative reviews at State and Federal levels and
influencing regulatory settings to minimise the
compliance burden on small business operators.
During 2014-15, the SBDC actively contributed
to the State’s Reinvigorating Regulatory Reform
agenda and provided submissions in relation to
competition policy, unfair contract terms, work
health and safety, personal property securities,
retail trade, workplace relations, planning
regulations, workers compensation, small
business tax impediments, and contracts in the
construction industry.
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Stakeholder representation and collaboration
The SBDC is a strong advocate for the Western
Australian small business sector across a broad
range of State and Federal Government working
groups collaborating on key small business issues.
Such representation provides a coordinated policy
response and ensures the interests of Western
Australian businesses are represented. The SBDC
worked with:
• Small Business Commissioners’ Group;
• Australian Competition and Consumer
Commission’s Small Business Consultative
Committee and Franchising Consultative
Committee;
• Chamber of Commerce and Industry of Western
Australia (CCIWA) and its small business entity, the
Small Enterprise Network (SEN) Advisory Panel;
• Regional Chambers of Commerce and Industry WA;
• Ignition program, Curtin Centre for
Entrepreneurship (C4E);
• The Department of Environment Regulation’s
Environmental Regulation Stakeholder Reference
Group;
• The Department of Training and Workforce
Development’s Workplace Essentials SME Project
Steering Committee;
• The Department of Finance’s Regulatory Impact
Assessment Working Group;
• The Department of Finance’s Regulatory
Champions Working Group;
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• The Department of Commerce’s Regional
Telecommunications Project Steering Committee;
and
• The Aboriginal Economic Development and
Governance Sub-Committee of Cabinet.
The SBDC has also formed a number of strategic
alliances with other stakeholders in the development
and delivery of services, support and programs to
the State’s small business sector, including:
• Tourism WA;
• Migration Institute of Australia (Western
Australian branch);
• Western Australian Chinese Chamber of
Commerce;
• Department of Immigration and Border
Protection;
• Many Rivers Microfinance;
• WA Indigenous Tourism Operators Council;
• Department of Training and Workforce
Development;
• Combined Small Business Alliance of Western
Australia;
• Regulatory Gatekeeping Unit, Department of
Finance; and
• Tourism Council of Western Australia.
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